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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRmEREEEE kT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of National Investments
Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company is an investment company and the Group is principally
engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted
companies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$56,480,000 (2013: loss of approximately HK$42,603,000).
Excluding the net gain of HK$54,397,000 (2013: net loss of
HK$47,049,000) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), the Group’s revenue decreased by 53.15% to approximately
HK$2,083,000 (2013: approximately HK$4,446,000). The proceeds
on sales of equity and debt securities and commodities futures
contract were approximately HK$183,620,000 (2013: approximately
HK$111,521,000), and the cost of sales were approximately
HK$162,706,000 (2013: approximately HK$142,551,000), therefore,
the net realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL was approximately
HK$20,914,000 (2013: the net realised loss on financial assets at FVTPL
was approximately HK$31,030,000). Apart from the net realised gain
on financial assets at FVTPL, the unrealised gain on financial assets at
FVTPL was approximately HK$33,483,000 (2013: the unrealised loss on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$16,019,000).

For the year, the loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$112,941,000 (2013: loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$117,881,000). The loss of
HK$140,323,000 (2013: approximately HK$52,391,000) was mainly
attributable to the impairment loss of available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets and an increase in other operating expenses. The Company
also recorded finance costs of approximately HK$6,547,000 (2013:
approximately HK$5,539,000) and share of results of an associate of
approximately HK$6,062,000 (2013: approximately HK$1,608,000).

During the year, the Group received dividend income from financial

assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$26,000 (2013: approximately
HK$697,000).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

As the positive outlook of Hong Kong stock market was supported by
market forecasts from various renowned financial institutions worldwide
for 2014, the Group will continue to implement diversified investment
strategies and to identify suitable investment opportunities with potential
assets appreciation to generate better returns for the Group and the
shareholders. The Group will also continue to adopt and maintain a
prudent but proactive investment approach and will closely monitor
the performance of the investment portfolios. The Group is confident
that shareholders of the Company will be rewarded with strong positive
returns under our investment portfolios in the future.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year (2013: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$16,489,000 (2013: approximately HK$21,624,000) as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had issued promissory notes
in the aggregate amount of HK$110,000,000. Eleven promissory notes
in the denomination of HK$10,000,000 each were issued to eleven
independent third parties. Each promissory note bears interest at a rate
of 5% per annum with a maturity period of seven years from the date of
issue. The net proceeds were used for investment in securities and/or as
general working capital of the Group.

In addition, the Group also obtained short term loans in the aggregate
amount of HK$55,000,000 from a financial institution, details of which
are more particularly set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.

The Group had net current assets of approximately HK$154,758,000
(2013: approximately HK$155,370,000) as at 31 December 2014. Save
and except the above, the Group had not obtained any credit facility
from other financial institutions during the year. As all cash and cash
equivalents were placed in Hong Kong Dollars accounts with banks in
Hong Kong, exposure to exchange fluctuation is considered minimal. The
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total liabilities over total equity as
at 31 December 2014, was 0.585 (2013: 0.926).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TERERER E M

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). During the year, the changes in the
capital structure of the Company are set out below:

(i) On 21 February 2014, the Company completed a rights issue
and issued 995,022,471 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at a subscription price of HK$0.10 each. The net proceeds, after
deducting the related costs and expenses, of approximately
HK$91.97 million were used as general working capital of the
Group and for investments pursuant to the investment objectives
of the Company. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 28 January 2014.

(ii) On 15 August 2014, the Company completed a placing of
132,660,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a
placing agent to not less than six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.60 per placing share, and the net proceeds of the placing
in the amount of approximately HK$77.52 million, representing a
net price of HK$0.58 per placing share, were used for investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. Details of
the placing were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 12 August 2014, 13 August 2014 and 15 August 2014.

(i)  On 23 September 2014, the Company completed a placing of
132,679,325 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a
placing agent to not less than six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.70 per placing share, and the net proceeds of the placing
in the amount of approximately HK$89.58 million, representing
a net price of HK$0.68 per placing share, were used as general
working capital of the Group and for investments pursuant to the
investments objectives of the Company. Details of the placing
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8
September 2014 and 23 September 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of issued ordinary shares of
the Company was 1,592,035,953 shares (2013: 331,674,157 shares).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 34 employees (2013: 25),
including executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors. Total employee costs for the year were
approximately HK$17,638,000 (2013: approximately HK$12,194,000).
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company did not have any
material capital commitments (2013: Nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no charges on the Group’s assets or any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their unfailing support. | would
also like to thank our management and staff for their dedication and hard
work.

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015

TEHMERERE TR LT

BE

R-E—NF+_A=+—8 AEELF34H (=
T—=F:25%)EE HBBERITES FHT
EERBUFRTEE -RAFEZEREKANAEE
#9/4517,638,000/8 7T ( =Z — =4 : £912,194,000/%
TL) cAKEZHFIREER T2 MIBEMER I
NEREE ZRBERERIEABETELE-

BAEE

R-B—MF+-_A=1t—H AEBEREARAL
BEMEREREAE(ZT—=F H)-

FEBEERARIREE
R-F-m&E+-A=+—B FAEELRETE
EERREARRAB(ZT—=F:8) -

IS &t

AANERREFERIABRRREBEHE —ERIX
F-UAREEBREETITHE -

a1
e

BB —E—RAF=A=+—H

=l

BB BEESARAT 01458 [



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

E=NEREEEDE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Danny F., aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics and Accounting from China Central University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experiences in investment
project evaluation, listing planning and asset management. From 2001 to
2005, Mr. Wong was an executive director of Sun Hung Kai International
Limited and was in charge of investment banking and responsible for
public listing of companies and fund raising activities for private and
listed companies. Mr. Wong is a non-executive director of Cardio3
Biosciences S.A. (Symbol: CARD), a public company listed on NYSE
Euronext Brussels and NYSE Euronext Paris regulated markets since
26 November 2014. For the period from June 2009 to August 2009,
Mr. Wong was an executive director of Mission Capital Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Poly Capital Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1141),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. For the period from February
2014 to June 2014, Mr. Wong served as an executive director and the
chairman of Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock code: 136), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Yang XiaoFeng, who is a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick, aged 73, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 6 January 2004. He was also the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for the period from 1 November 2005
to 19 May 2014. Mr. Wu was educated in Hong Kong and the United
States with a Master of Business Administration degree in Finance.
He has over 43 years of experience in insurance, securities business
and asset management. He started his career with Paul Revere Life
Insurance Company as an assistant actuary. He later worked for Fidelity
Management and Research of Boston as an analyst and then moved on
to senior positions in research and fund management with various well-
known institutions in the United States. In the early 80s, Mr. Wu joined
and served as a senior portfolio manager and investment advisor at Bank
of America in Hong Kong. In the 90s, Mr. Wu joined and was elected as
a director and senior consultant of Lippo Securities Group Limited (the
“Lippo Securities Group”). He was a member of Lippo Securities Group
investment committee and was responsible for supervising the fund
management activities including futures related investments of Lippo
Securities Group. Mr. Wu is currently a responsible officer registered
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 1 November 2005. Mr. Fong is a Certified Practising
Accountant (Australia), a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute
of Certified Management Accountants, Australia and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Fong has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various sectors of financial industry, including direct investment, project
and structured finance and capital markets with focus on the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. Mr. Fong was previously
a director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and held various
management positions in ING Bank. Mr. Fong was previously also an
executive director of Grand Investment International Limited (15 April
2003 (date of incorporation) to 1 April 2006), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Fong is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Innovationpay Group Limited (formerly known as
SYSCAN Technology Holdings Limited) since 19 December 2003 and
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (formerly known as Ruinian International
Limited) since 28 March 2008, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng, aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 21 May 2007. She was redesignated as
an executive director of the Company on 1 March 2014 and further
redesignated as a non-executive director on 11 March 2014. Ms. Yang
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from the Zhejiang
Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou University of
Commerce). Ms. Yang has extensive experience in finance marketing.
Ms. Yang was an independent non-executive director of Forefront
International Holdings Limited (currently known as Forefront Group
Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, for
the period from 18 April 2007 to 18 May 2007 .

Ms. Yang is the spouse of Mr. Wong Danny F., who is the Chairman and
an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Gao Chengming, aged 30, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 4 March 2015, He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Statistics from the Beijing Normal University and a
Master of Finance degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Gao has
worked as an analyst and an auditor in Guosen Securities (HK) Financial
Holdings Company, Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers China
respectively. Mr. Gao has over four years’ experience in auditing and
financial analysis, and had been licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 5 (Advising on futures contracts) regulated activities
under the SFO.

EENRAEEERE

FRERE 525 R-_STRF+— A —BEZT
BARBIZHITES - A BBRMAESE R
HHIEOE  BACAASEE  BMREESE
CHAHESERBTAEEECGE - S AERS
MEZTREEREFE0FLELR BEEITER
FEARENE ([FE]) REBSETZEERE
HEREBUEREUREAMB - FAECATE
KE(FE)ELSEEFRARES  WHING Bank
EATREEBRA - FLETEEREREBRE
ERAR (MR EMAG) ZHITEE (ZET =
FEMA+HRA (EMRZBH) E-_TE/NEMA—
B) AEESBBE-_TEE=F+=-_A+NLBE=ZF
SENFZA-+N\BREBZA EmARPRAEFH
STREBMARAR (FBYRRIEERAERAR) &
WEEBRABRARZEMIENITES -

FHITES

BRELZL: 6 R_ZZ+tFRA-_T—BE
RERARAFMTESZ - WX T —HNFE=A—
BRERSARANTES HRBR_-_FT-—NF=
At —BRERIVTEZT - HBLIHEMNITH
KRB (AIBMMERER) RECEMMNBE L8 -
BRLIHELESRTSHEELR R _TTLF
MA+N\BZz-_ZTLtFRAATN\BHE Bt
CRZEARIBERZERBERAR (REEIEE
BRAR) (ERONRBRM M) 2 BIIFMITE
=o

BREIRANBEERNTET RG2S -

BMEEL 30m R _E-LAF=-ANBAEZER
ARBZIFATER - FRHBILREMERB 2 552
BEZEBLBUNMBEABZEBBLIEG -3
TEBRBEERS (BE) ERERERARIREE
KB R & T B BT AT 2 Bl HE (E A7 55 B ANAZ B o
RALHEBBBAFEARUBONER L LER
BUETEFGITE4R (RESREER) RE
S (MHBEANRHER)XRETBH 2 MR-

B AR ARAT 01458 9



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EZNRAEEERE

Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny, aged 26, was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on 17 March 2015. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in marketing management from Purdue University in the United
States of America. Mr. Lau has over three years’ experience in financial
research and analysis, and has worked in Barclays Wealth and UBS
AG. He is a youth committee member of China Federation of Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneurs.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 22 May 2007 .
Mr. Char holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree (Honours) from the University
of London, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences (Criminology) from
the University of Hong Kong, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences
(Counselling) from the University of Hong Kong and a Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Char was a
Chief Investigator and Senior Assignment Officer of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004. Mr.
Char was a Chief Executive Officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.
Mr. Char is currently a Barrister at Law and an Accredited Mediator.

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in International Economic Law from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Liu has been a qualified solicitor in the PRC
since 2001 and has various experience in merger and acquisition and
corporate restructure in the PRC. Mr. Liu is currently a qualified solicitor
practicing in Shenzhen, PRC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Law Tze Lun, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 12 December 2013. Mr. Law is
a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and currently a
director of ANSA CPA Limited. Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Commerce (Accounting) from Curtin University of Technology. He is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of the
CPA Australia. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance gained from various accounting firms in Hong Kong. Mr.
Law is an independent non-executive director of Come Sure Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794) since February 2009 and Gemini
Investments (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 174) since November 2010,
both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
During the period from April 2010 to September 2011, Mr. Law served
as an independent non-executive director of China Automotive Interior
Decoration Holdings Limited (stock code: 8321), which was listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Tian Jingjing, aged 31, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 21 April 2015. She holds a Bachelor of
Professional Accountancy degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Finance degree from the University of Hong
Kong. She was admitted to exchange in the Singapore Management
University and attended a course at the Peking University. She is a
graduate of Beijing No. 4 High School. Ms. Tian joined Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited, responsible for handling risk management and
control over secondary market trading. She then joined Macquarie
Capital (Hong Kong) Limited and handled various fund raising and cross-
border mergers and acquisitions projects. Ms. Tian is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a charterholder of both
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and Financial Risk Manager (FRM).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance practices and procedures to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group. The Board will
review and improve the corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that the Group is under the leadership of an effective board.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”), except for the deviation disclosed below. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that the
Company complies with the requirements of the CG Code. The Company
acknowledges the importance of corporate governance and ensures
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.

Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to directors and senior
management of the Group to ensure that each and every director and
senior management is aware of the importance of corporate governance.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

According to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting. In respect of the
annual general meeting held on 16 May 2014 (the “2014 AGM”), Mr.
Wong Danny F.,, the Chairman of the Board, was engaged in an important
business meeting and was not able to attend the 2014 AGM. However,
Mr. Fong Chi Wah, an executive director of the Company, and Mr. Law
Tze Lun, an independent non-executive director and chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company and members of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, attended the 2014 AGM and
answered questions raised during the 2014 AGM.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general meetings of
the Company. Due to other business commitment, Ms. Yang XiaoFeng,
a non-executive director and Mr. Liu Jin, an independent non-executive
director did not attend the general meetings of the Company held on 13
January 2014, 25 February 2014, 28 March 2014 and the 2014 AGM
respectively; furthermore, Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen, an independent
non-executive director, did not attend the 2014 AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and plans
and oversees their implementation to ensure the healthy growth of the
Company and safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
the management will prepare and supply the same to the Board and its
committees. The Company Secretary will render his advice to the Board
so that all the Board procedures and applicable rules and regulations
are followed. The directors may make further enquiries if they are of
the view that the information is not sufficient for them to make an
informed decision. In general, each director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses upon making request to the Board.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting and will not be dealt with by way of written resolutions.
Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have adopted
the applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings.

Delegation by the Board

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to the
entering into of any significant transactions by the abovementioned
officers. The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

ESRERE MERR RERETEEZS
REZ B WERADAEBRERRRERRA A
PR 2 2

/|

EXSRAARAMAEARSER BREMANREE
FIERRER BERRLASE AREERERE
B PBEN EEREREMERWEREE
EE-

EREEMERAEYANETERAEETZESRMM
BERBEER UE2REEHI2EREREME
HEER RANERNEETSRHEZS BEES
ERFANMERRANLBIHESET EFTRNA
REMTRENERFELNBEREFAFELE—TE
He—RME SESKAEFTS 2R YA EE
BEZERATSRBYEXRER  ERAARRB XN -

EEITRBRRKESARERFTRTERMNEZEHR
FHFESERRSERETIR MAEUNER
RERTARE - BENZHRZBIUFATESH
gHFEeE UEEAHMERERH-

EXeR X8RN ERZEE FHZEER
REZBE 2HMCRMNESCERLAZERS

EEgoRE

ARARBBTRARNSREBABREARAZ
BREE fTRREE PIRBERTHEEHEESR
mate LM ABRI S EMERZ A AEERTSH
FE-BEEZRAETRAZRSRERABZE2NIXE
TETHEAE-

AR AES ARAT 01468 | 3

!



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, have specific terms of reference defining the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committees. The committees are
required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain specific
situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking any actions.

The Board reviews, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to
different committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and
continue to be beneficial to the Company as a whole.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Policy to provide appropriate cover for any potential claims against
directors and officers. The insurance policy was renewed in April 2015.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. All directors devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group.

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of three
executive directors, three non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors.

In addition, there is no material relationship among members of the
Board, save that Ms. Yang XiaoFeng, a non-executive director, is the
spouse of Mr. Wong Danny F.,, the Chairman and an executive director of
the Company.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors appointed
to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall be subject to re-election
by shareholders. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
with effect from 4 September 2013. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick (Stepped down as Chief Executive Officer
on 19 May 2014)

Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Redesigned as Non-executive Director
on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Gao Chengming (Appointed on 4 March 2015)

Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Appointed on 17 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

The list of directors containing the names of the directors (by category) is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term up to the forthcoming annual general meeting subject to
renewal and re-election as and when required under the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company. All directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick and Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen shall retire as directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as directors at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Gao Chengming and Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny shall retire as
directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as
directors at the Company’s annual general meeting.
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The presence of three independent non-executive directors is considered
by the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-
executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance
can provide adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and of the Group. The non-executive directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so
that independent judgement can effectively be exercised as well as
ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are taken into account.
They are also responsible for participating in Board meetings, dealing
with potential conflicts of interest, serving on the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and
scrutinizing the Group’s performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, they provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience
to the Board and the committees on which they serve so that the
management process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its
independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION
PLANNING OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. To ensure a balance of power
and authority, Mr. Wong Danny F. and Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent
(succeeded by Ms. Tian Jinging on 21 April 2015) have been appointed
as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company respectively.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS, BOARD AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each director at shareholders’
meetings, and the meetings of the Board and committees during the year
are set out below:
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HE/BTEERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM EGM
Name of Directors EEpng Ezg ENZES FWZEEE REZEE RRBEFAE RREIAE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. TRELE 14/15 - - - 0/1 0/3
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RYBLE 12/15 - - - 0/ 0/3
Mr. Fong Chi Wah hEERE 11115 - - - 11 0/3
Non-executive Director FHiTES
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng BHREER L
(Redesignated as (R=F—pmF
Non-executive Director ZA+—HHBF
on 11 March 2014) BHRTEE) 14/15 - 11 - 0N 0/3
Mr. Gao Chengming SYE
(Appointed on (R-F—RF
4 March 2015) ZAAHEEE) - = = = = =
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny Bl
(Appointed on (R=ZF—0#F
17 March 2015) =i
EZ(E) - - - - - -
Independent BUFBTES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen & 5556 4 11/15 22 . 2/2 0/ 3/3
Mr. Liu Jin At 11/15 2/2 1/ 2/2 0N 0/3
Mr. Law Tze Lun BY#RAE 10/15 2/2 11 2/2 11 3/3
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings are served to all directors at least 14 days before the meetings,
who were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing agenda
for the meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied with. The
finalized agenda and accompanying board papers are then sent to all
directors at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) without the presence of
executive directors. The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings, including the record of all
decisions by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors and/or any of
their associates have a material interest.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with its
shareholders and for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

During the year, apart from the 2014 AGM, the Company held other

general meetings on 13 January 2014, 25 February 2014 and 28 March
2014 respectively.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the Group
provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each newly appointed
director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are
provided and organised to ensure that the new directors are familiar with
the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as directors as well as
the business and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored for each individual director taking into account his/her
background and expertise. The Company Secretary will continuously
update all directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
of the same by all directors.

All directors also participated in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board.
The record of the trainings received by the respective directors, which are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary, is as follows:
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Types of Trainings

Name of Directors EENE EIER
Mr. Wong Danny F. pad=l ik A B
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RFBEEE A B
Mr. Fong Chi Wah RREL A A B
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng R+ A B
Mr. Gao Chengming =k 88 & A B
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny 2mgE S E A B
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHBEE A B
Mr. Liu Jin RS E A B
Mr. Law Tze Lun EIBAEAE A B

A Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or talks

B: Reading updates on latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a
yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held
by him/her in public companies and organisations and other significant
commitments.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kim Fai has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities by the directors of the Company. Based on specific enquiry
with directors, all directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
The Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on
a going-concern basis, announcements related to inside information
and other financial disclosures. The management of the Group provides
all relevant information and records to the Board enabling it to make
the above assessment and to prepare the accounts and other financial
disclosures.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company within one year from the date of his ceasing
to be a partner or have any financial interest in the auditing firm.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with its review of the independence of
auditors, their audit process and also the standard of reports aforesaid.
The Audit Committee made recommendations to the Board and that
there was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
during the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Group’s
financial statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the
auditors’ report present a true and balanced assessment of the Group’s
financial position, reviewing the Group’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems, and reviewing the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices. Other duties of the Audit Committee
are set out in its specific terms of reference which are posted on the
Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held to review
the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2014
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each
meeting.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee as per the terms of reference
include:

° to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
reports;

° to review financial controls, internal controls, and risk management
system;

° to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° to review arrangements by which employees, in confidence can
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. The Committee shall ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such concerns and appropriate follow up actions;
and

° to act as the key representative body to oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and has access to independent professional advice when
necessary. The Company’s annual report for the year has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises two
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun,
and one non-executive director, Ms. Yang XiaoFeng. Mr. Liu Jin also
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
posted on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee meets
at least once a year. During the year, the Remuneration Committee had
convened one meeting and all Remuneration Committee members
attended the meeting.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee as per the
terms of reference are as follows:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy;

° to determine specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. The Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;

° to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangement is made in accordance with contractual terms
and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

° to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service
contracts of directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources
to enable it to perform its functions and the Remuneration Committee
has right to access professional advice relating to remuneration
proposal when it is considered necessary. The principle elements of the
Company’s remuneration policy for directors and senior management
are:

° to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be on a par with
companies with whom the Company competes for human
resources;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should reflect the
performance and responsibilities of an individual, as well as the
complexity of work; and

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be structured in
such a way which can provide incentives to directors and senior
management to improve their individual performance.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed matters relating
to remuneration packages of directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen, Mr.
Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen also serves as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted
on the Company’s website. The Nomination Committee meets at least
once a year. For the year, the Nomination Committee had convened two
meetings and all Nomination Committee members attended the meeting.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee as per the
terms of reference are as follows:

° to formulate nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy;

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individual nominated for directorships;
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to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and the
succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
as well as the senior management;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Company’s constitution or imposed by legislation;

to review the Company’s Board diversity policy and the progress
on achieving the objectives set for implementing the said policy;

to report to the Board on its decisions and recommendations as
and when appropriate and at least once annually; and

the Nomination Committee shall be provided with sufficient
resources to enable it to perform its functions and where
necessary, to be allowed to seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense.

The Nomination Committee had performed the following work during the

year:

(i)

Reviewed the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company;

Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

Determined the suitability, duties and responsibilities of Mr. Chiu
Shung Wai, Vincent as the Chief Executive Officer.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year, the total remuneration for the audit services provided by
auditors amounted to approximately HK$350,000 (2013: HK$200,000)
and HK$170,000 (2013: HK$170,000) for non-audit services, including
professional fee for circular.

The re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors
of the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board will therefore be responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, etc.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of internal controls
and risk management of the Company and to review its effectiveness.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since
the last review, scope and quality of the management’s monitoring of
risks, incidence of significant control failings and identified weaknesses,
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company was exposed to market risk for its AFS
financial assets, including the embedded derivatives, as the Company
may not be able to liquidate such investments in time to meet its cash
flow requirements. In response to this situation, the Board has maintained
a portfolio of listed securities and a relatively strong cash position.

The portfolio of listed securities, classified as financial assets at FVTPL
in the balance sheet, may be exposed to market price risk. The Board
will continue to monitor the portfolio with an aim to reduce such risk by
diversification.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of
financial statements for each financial period which should give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash
flow for that period. The directors ensure that the financial statements for
the year were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards, and will ensure that the publication of
which will be in a timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant
information to its shareholders. The commitments to fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can
be reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company conforms to the best practices
regarding corporate governance. The notice of annual general meeting
and the relevant circular, which are circulated to all shareholders at
least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, set out
the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures
(including procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. At the beginning of the meeting, the chairman
of the meeting indicates to the meeting the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution and the balance for and against such resolution. At the
Company’s 2014 AGM, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll
and Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly
counted.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Where notice of general meeting includes the election of directors of the
Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election of
any person as a director of the Company at the annual general meeting.
Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if
a shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director for election as
a director at any general meeting (including the annual general meeting),
the shareholder should lodge a written notice (the “Nomination Notice”)
signed by the shareholder at the head office or Registration Office (as
defined in the Articles of Association) of the Company not less than seven
clear days but not more than 14 clear days before the date of the general
meeting. The Nomination Notice must be accompanied by a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected as a
director.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its
annual and interim reports. The directors, Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond promptly to
inquiries from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to shareholders and investors. The Company
updates shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports and notices,
announcements and circulars. The Company’s website (www.nif-
hk.com) provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

To strengthen its relationships with investors, the Company regularly
meets with analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of
the press and other economic journals.

During the year, there had been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The directors have the pleasure in presenting this annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The principal activity of the Company is investment in listed and
unlisted companies.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 27 September 2002.

Business or geographical analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities for
the year is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2014 and the results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 47.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year (2013: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 48 and 49 and Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s available reserves for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands were approximately HK$249,407,000 (2013: approximately
HK$111,947,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and there is no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick (Stepped down as Chief Executive Officer
on 19 May 2014)

Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Director

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Redesignated as Non-executive Director
on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Gao Chengming (Appointed on 4 March 2015)

Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Appointed on 17 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick and Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen, shall retire as directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as directors at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Gao Chengming and Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny shall retire as
directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as
directors at the Company’s annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Currently, all executive directors have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of two years. Each of these executive directors
is entitled to his respective basic salary. In addition, in respect of each
financial year of the Company, each of the executive directors is also
entitled to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all executive directors may not exceed 15%
of the audited net profit of the Company (after taxation but before
extraordinary and exceptional items and payment of such bonuses)
in respect of that financial year of the Company. An executive director
is required to abstain from voting and is not counted in the quorum in
respect of any resolution of the directors regarding the amount of the
monthly salary and the discretionary bonus payable to him.

In respect of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, each of them has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company respectively for a term up to the forthcoming annual general
meeting and their appointments will be terminated by the giving of not
less than 14 days’ notice in writing by either party. All directors of the
Company, including independent non-executive directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Save as disclosed above, no other director has entered into service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The directors’ interests in contracts are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. Apart from the foregoing, there was
no contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBT SECURITIES

Other than those disclosed under the section headed “Interests in Share
Options” below, at no time during the year was the Company a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executive of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any or its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 December, 2014, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
below:
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percentage of
Number of Number of the Company’s
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Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held capital
Fris e RN E B BT
EEpg =0 L RReA RO EE BRABNE DL
Mr. Wong Danny F. Interest of controlled corporation/ 296,338,637 463,143% 18.64%
Beneficial owner
TR S A XL R BERBRA
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick Beneficial owner - 463,1427 0.03%
RY¥EEE EnEAA
Mr. Fong Chi Wah Beneficial owner = 463,142% 0.03%
AEELE EnEAA
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng Beneficial owner - 463,143% 0.03%
BB+ EnEAA
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen Beneficial owner = 463,1424 0.03%
BHEEE EnEAA
Mr. Liu Jin Beneficial owner - 463,1427 0.03%
R E EnEAA

All of the above interests in the Company held by the directors were long
positions.
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Notes:

1) These represent beneficial interests in shares owned by CCM Asia
Investment Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and the entire issued share capital of which
is indirectly held by Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company. These shares have been charged in favour of
a secured lender.

) These represent the underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted to the directors pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 August 2007. The details are set out in the

section headed “Interests in Share Options” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive or their
associates had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 27 August
2007 (the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant share
options to eligible participants, including the directors and employees
of the Company, as incentive or rewards for their contribution to the
Company. On 28 March 2014, an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company was convened and the shareholders of the Company
approved the refreshment of the general scheme limit under the Share
Option Scheme at the extraordinary general meeting which allows the
Company to grant share options entitling holders thereof to subscribe
for a maximum of 132,669,662 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the extraordinary general
meeting.
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, in principle, is to enable the
Company to motivate participants for their significant contributions to the
growth of the Company and to retain and maintain on-going business
relationship with such participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Company. It is important for
the Company to provide them, where appropriate, with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest
in the Company and to reward them for contributing to the Company’s
long-term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

U

(i)

0

(iv)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue
as at the adoption date unless refreshed by the shareholders.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme should
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant within 28
days from the date of offer of the option. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 27 August 2007.
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Details of movement of the share options during the year under the Share
Option Scheme were as follows:

Number of share options
BRE%E

BT 8 TR

ERERNZBEFBNOT

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjustment at price price
1dan during during during during 31Dec at1dan at 31 Dec
2014 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2014 2014 2014  Date of grant Exercisable period
RZZ-mF R=B-mE R-B-NEF R-T-OF
-B-H +-A=1+-H —E—E +-A=1+-H
HRITE FRRY ERTRE FRXNU FRRR HRATR ZiTRE kA RULAH Fix:
(HKS) (HKS) Note 1)
(1) (A7) (K1)
(Note 2)
(#rit2)
Directors
B2
Mr. Wong Danny F. 26,208 = = = 47175 73,383 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
TREEE TtE+-R ZETHET—A-T/\BZ
—tN\B “2—+E\A=1/H
139,200 - - - 250,560 389,760 1.58 056 18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
——En —Z-—FMA+N\RZE
/1A ZT-tFNAZT/A
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 26,208 = = = 47174 73,382 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
RFBRE Zt+5+-4 3 S A=TN\BZE
—+/7R “2—+E\A=1/H
139,200 250,560 389,760 1.58 056  18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
——%MmA “2——#MATNRE
/1A ZT-tFNAZT/A
Mr. Fong ChiWah 26,208 = = = 47174 73,382 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
AEERE TtE+-R “ETHET—AZT/\BE
—+/7R ZE-tENAZTRE
139,200 - - - 250,560 389,760 1.58 056 18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
——%mA —Z——FMA+N\RZE
/1A :?—tﬁ)\ﬂ:JrﬁEl
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng 26,208 = = = 47175 73,383 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
T Trrt-p 22 iEt -1 N\AE
—+/\R —T—+E\AZ1RA
139,200 - - - 250,560 389,760 1.58 0.56 WS-A;%-W 1 18 Apr 2011 to 26-Aug-17
——FQN
/1A
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 26,208 = = = 47174 73,382 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHAKE Z+5+-A4 “Z2EEL-AZTN\BE
—+/7R “2—+F\A=1/A
139,200 - - - 250,560 389,760 1.58 056  18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
——%mA —Z-—FMA+\RZE
+/1\A ZI-tFNA=T/A
Mr. Liu Jin 26,208 = = = 47174 73,382 16.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26-Aug-17
ks TtE+-R _Z% ZTNBZE
—+/7R “2—+F\A=1/A
139,200 - - - 250,560 389,760 1.58 056 18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
——£mA —Z-—FMA+\RZE
+/NA ZE-tFNAZT/A
992,448 = = = 1,786,406 2,778,854
Employees 3,992,400 = = = 7,186,320 11,178,720 1.58 0.56  18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
EE ——%MA —Z--£mMA+N\BE
RA:] Z2-tFN\A=tiA
- 132,640,000 - - - 132,640,000 - 040 11-Ju-14 11 Jul 2014 to 26 Aug 2017
—mE+A T-MEtAT-REZE
+-A ZE-tFNA=T/A
Resigned directors 52,416 - - - 94,349 146,765 15.83 565  28-Nov-07 28 Nov 2007 to 26-Aug-17
BRIES Z+5+-4 ZEREET-AZT\BE
—tNB ZE-tFNAZ+RA
278,400 = = = 501,120 779,520 1.58 0.56  18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
——Em —2——%MATNRE
/1A ZE-tFNA=T/A
Other eligible participants 8,898,000 = = = 16,016,400 24,914,400 1.58 0.56  18-Apr-11 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
AftABHR2EE ——£mA —Z-—-EmMA+N\BE
/1A Z2-tFNA=tKA
Toti! 14,213,664 = = = 25,584,595 172,438,259
Weighted average HK$1.79 - - - - HK$0.45
exercise price 1.79%7T 04557
MEFHTEE

34 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes:

1. In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, (i) a
maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of grant; (i) a
maximum of another 30% options, plus any options being unexercised
in (i), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of total options granted,
are exercisable from 28 November 2008; and (iii) the remaining
40% options, plus any options being unexercised in (i) and (i), are
exercisable from 28 November 2009 to 26 August 2017.

2. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
and the number of new shares to be allotted and issued upon full
exercise if the subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share
options were adjusted to reflect the rights issue which came into effect

on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s directors and chief
executive, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights during the 12 months ended 31 December 2014.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the directors, the
following shareholders (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares capital
HAREE #IT
BREER HE E=47) ZERHE & =
CCM Asia Investment Corporation (Note 1) Beneficial owner 296,338,637 18.61%
CCM Asia Investment Corporation ( #7:£1) ExEAA
CCM Financial Corporation (Note 1) Corporate owner 296,338,637 18.61%
CCM Financial Corporation ( #7z%1) NEHER A
Sino Portfolio International Limited (Note 2) Security owner 296,338,637 18.61%
Sino Portfolio International Limited (475£2) ERESHER A
Ms. Angela Chen (Note 3) Interest through controlled
corporation 296,338,637 18.61%
Angela ChenZ & (#1:£3) BAZERER 2 s
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited Interest in controlled corporation 107,647,473 6.76%

REGFREBRARAA

All of the above interests in the Company held by shareholders were long

positions.
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company, is the sole shareholder of CCM Financial Corporation which
in turn is the sole shareholder of CCM Asia Investment Corporation,
CCM Financial Corporation and Mr. Wong Danny F. are therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company held by CCM Asia Investment Corporation under the SFO.

2. Sino Portfolio International Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Seychelles (“Sino Portfolio”), has a security interest in
296,338,637 shares of the Company.

3. Sino Portfolio is wholly-owned by Ms. Angela Chen. Ms. Angela Chen
is therefore deemed to be interested in 296,338,637 shares of the
Company which Sino Portfolio has a security interest in under the SFO.

Other than disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company’s entire turnover is derived from the Company’s
investment in equity securities listed or unlisted and thus the disclosure
of information regarding to customers and suppliers would not be
meaningful.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Subscription Agreement

On 14 October 2010, the Company and Premium Castle Limited
(“Premium Castle”), a company incorporated under the laws of British
Virgin Islands, entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Premium Castle agreed to issue and the Company agreed to subscribe
the 2% convertible note in the principal amount of HK$27,000,000
due on 13 October 2013 (the “2010 Convertible Note”). In 2011,
Premium Castle repaid HK$10,000,000 of the outstanding principal
amount of the 2010 Convertible Note to the Company. Subsequently,
the 2010 Convertible Note was cancelled and Premium Castle issued
to the Company another convertible note in replacement of the 2010
Convertible Note (the “2011 Convertible Note”). The Company has not
exercised the conversion rights under the 2011 Convertible Note and the
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 was due on 13 October 2013.
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Upon expiry of the 2011 Convertible Note and after negotiation
between Premium Castle and the Company, on 24 December 2013
(after trading hours), the Company and Premium Castle entered into
a new subscription agreement (the “New Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and Premium Castle has conditionally agreed to issue a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$18,600,000, being the outstanding
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 under the 2011 Convertible Note
and the outstanding interest in the sum of approximately HK$1,600,000
accrued under the 2010 Convertible Note and the 2011 Convertible Note
(collectively “Debt”), with maturity period of five years and coupon rate of
2% (the “Subscription”). The New Subscription Agreement constitutes
a discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules as the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule
14.06 of the Listing Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%. The
New Subscription Agreement also constitutes a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the major shareholder of
Premium Castle is Mr. Wong Danny F.,, the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company, Premium Castle is therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the New Subscription Agreement is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Mr. Wong Danny F., who
is the Chairman and an executive director of the Company and a major
shareholder of Premium Castle, is regarded as having a material interest
in the New Subscription Agreement and therefore he abstained from
voting at the meeting of the Board at which the resolution approving the
New Subscription Agreement was passed and Mr. Wong Danny F. and
his associates were required to abstain from voting on the resolution
approving the New Subscription Agreement passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 February 2014. Details of
the Subscription were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
February 2014. The New Subscription Agreement has been approved at
the extraordinary general meeting and was completed on the same day.

Upon completion of the Subscriptions on 25 February 2014, the
obligation of Premium Castle to pay the Debt has been released and the
Debt, which was previously recorded as current assets of the Company,
was reclassified as financial asset in the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

Directors’ Report
BEEHE

KT ——F a2 % Z 45 5 Hi6F + & Premium Castle
B AR RERE % AR A EPremium Castle — =
—=F T AT NBE(RZKRE)FTILHNAE
e ([FRBEWHZE]) Bt ARFBEGHHRE
R EE M Premium CastleB &R BERIT AL & 58
/318,600,000 7T (B =T — —F [ #H KR EHIE T
2B REEAS ©517,000,0008 T —E—F
FUMBREBRBR T ——FOBRERIB T ZEET
KREEF B A H491,600,0008 7T (AFEIER]))
ZABRBREE AR RAF EERLAE ([RESE
H|) AR EHRAFE14.06I6FTREZERED L
EHRERBIERNR25%  BRE EmARIE+MNE - 5
REBEERARE ZBTHRERS o R Premium
CastleZ T ERFR AN RREFERNTE S TREIE L
A >t Premium Castle &R Q&) 2 BiE A+ MR
EHRAETHAE  FTREBETEXEERS -
Hit - FRBHEEET EMBNBE T ZHR - AE
REBYBREMEZRE ARG ZEFERATEER
Premium CastleZ £ Z X RITBEIE L £ R BRF
REBETHEEEAFE ALFERBBAHELL
ENREMBELARABRRZIESEERZ LHERRM
MEBEELEEREBEABRARABR ST —EF
ZAZTRBRTZREFINARE LR ENRE
BERERR - FEARBESEZFBERAEARAR
AT NF_AtHZBERANEE -FRERD
BOERBREFARS EEMAE WARHBETK-

RZZE-—HF_A-+HBREFTETKE:
Premium Castle XX (& 2 B E MR - il 2 B AR
WERRRIRBDEEZBEBERARRIZEREWH
MARRNEFTHEASREE-

R BBAT 01488 3/

faul

piis



Directors’ Report
BERE

Placing Agreement

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Beijing Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 12 August 2014, pursuant to which the
Company had agreed to place 132,660,000 new ordinary shares on a
fully underwritten basis to not less than six independent investors at the
placing price of HK$0.60 per placing share. The placing shares were fully
taken up and no placing share has been allotted to the Placing Agent. Mr.
Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive director of the Company,
holds 75.28% of the shareholdings of the holding company of the Placing
Agent. Mr. Wong Danny F. is also a director of the Placing Agent and
the holding company of the Placing Agent. Hence, the Placing Agent is
an associate of Mr. Wong Danny F. and is therefore a connected person
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. The acting as
the Placing Agent is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that that the placing commission of 2.5% on
the gross proceeds of the placing was determined within arm’s length
negotiation between the parties with regard to the prevailing market
practice and the placing commission is on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable. As the relevant percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) in respect of the placing commission and the brokerage fees under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is less than 5% and the total consideration
is less than HK$3,000,000, the transaction constitutes a connected
transaction which is fully exempt from independent shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Investment Advising Service Agreement

On 16 May 2011, the Company and Beijing Capital Partners Limited
(“Beijing Capital”) had mutually agreed to terminate the investment
management agreement dated 16 November 2010 entered into between
the parties and there was no penalty and/or compensation to any party
in relation to the early termination of the agreement. At the meantime,
the Company and Beijing Capital entered into an Investment Advising
Service Agreement (the “IAS Agreement”) whereby Beijing Capital was
appointed to act as investment adviser of the Company and agreed to
provide investment advising services and present suitable investment
opportunities to the Company commencing from 16 May 2011. Pursuant
to Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules, an investment adviser shall be
regarded as a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the entering
into of the IAS Agreement with Beijing Capital constitutes a continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. According to the terms and condition of the IAS Agreement, the
Company shall pay to Beijing Capital a monthly investment adviser fee of
HK$33,333. Therefore, it is exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Investment Management Agreement

The investment management agreement dated 11 July 2013 entered into
between the Company and Enerchine Investment Management Limited
(“Enerchine Investment”) expired on 15 May 2014. Accordingly, the
Company entered into a new investment management agreement (the
“New Investment Management Agreement”) with Enerchine Investment
on 9 May 2014 to renew the appointment of Enerchine Investment
as the investment manager of the Company on the same terms with
a fixed management fee of HK$100,000 per month. Under the New
Investment Management Agreement, the investment manager agreed to
provide investment management services to the Company for a period
of one year from 16 May 2014. Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the Listing
Rules, an investment manager is deemed to be a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the entering into of the New Investment
Management Agreement with Enerchine Investment constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the New Investment Management Agreement
is set out in the Company’s announcement dated 9 May 2014.

Custodian Agreement

Commencing from 11 March 2005, the Company appointed the Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited as its custodian for the provision
of custody services. The Bank of Communications Trustee Limited has
agreed to provide the Company with securities services including the
safe custody and physical settlement of the securities in the investment
portfolio of the Company, and the collection of dividends and other
entitlements in respect of such securities. The custodian agreement
referred into between the parties (the “Custodian Agreement”) will
continue in force until terminated by either the Company or the custodian
by the giving to the other of not less than 90 days’ notice in writing at any
time.

Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules, a custodian shall be regarded
as a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the provision of
services by the Bank of Communications Trustee Limited under the
Custodian Agreement on a continuing basis constitutes a continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Board, including the independent non-executive directors, is of
the view that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into (1) on normal commercial terms; (2) on an arm’s length basis;
and (3) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, and
that the terms of the above continuing connected transactions were fair
and reasonable to the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
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According to the terms and conditions of the Custodian Agreement,
the Company shall pay to the Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited an annual fee of HK$77,530. Therefore, the entering into of the
Custodian Agreement with the Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
is exempted from the reporting, announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Board, including the independent non-executive directors, is of
the view that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into (1) on normal commercial terms; (2) on an arm’s length basis;
and (3) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, and
that the terms of the above continuing connected transactions were fair
and reasonable to the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises of three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the management, have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including a review of the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2R S

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL INVESTMENTS FUND LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National
Investments Fund Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from the
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ire B M E M 2 E R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_—ZT—WMF+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF ==
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
it F#&xT FHT
Revenue W 25 7 56,480 (42,603)
Other income Eab g A 8 265 80
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE 33 (2,050) -
Loss on derecognition of available-for-sale ~ # IF R A H H &
financial assets SRMEEZERE = (15,878)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale A ESmEE 2 REEE
financial assets (10,933) -
Change in fair value of conversion options ~ AJ A IR NS Z AR HE ~
embedded in convertible notes NREEE (3,771) 58
Other operating expenses Hap LB X (140,323) (52,391)
Finance costs & R AR 9 (6,547) (5,539)
Share of result of an associate il NI 20 (6,062) (1,608)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIERE (112,941) (117,881)
Income tax expense ZECY 15 10 - -
Loss for the year FAER 11 (112,941) (117,881)
Other comprehensive income Efh 2w
Items that may be reclassified BEEASEEH 7 BZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BmikZHEAE
— Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available- —F RNE At H &
for-sale financial assets during the year SRMEEI WS
(E518) F8 4,847 (6,797)
- Reclassification relating to derecognition of — 75 BJ4% |F #ERR AT H &
available-for-sale financial assets CMEECENNE - 7,401
— Share of change in other comprehensive ~ — JE{G B & A 7]
income in an associate HEfh 2wz @ - 601
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year, net of income tax SR EH 4,847 1,205
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHEEGEALE (108,094) (116,676)
Loss for the year attributable to: THEEEBIEFAREE:
Owners of the Company KABWER A (112,941) (117,881)
Total comprehensive loss THEEELEFR
for the year attributable to: ZEEELE:
Owners of the Company KAEER A (108,094) (116,676)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted HAREE 16 HK$(0.08)% T HK$(0.16)7 7T
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 s AL EE A BmRE 2 — 2%

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ara IR

As at 31 December 2014 MW-Z—ME+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Assets: EE:
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI B KRR 17 6,616 31,166
Other tangible assets HthBREE 18 21,730 -
Interests in associates REEERNR 2w 20 23,938 -
Available-for-sale financial assets Attt ESHERE 21 194,864 41,892
Conversion options embedded in AMERERNE 2 RARE
convertible notes 22 2,453 -
249,601 73,058
Current assets REBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESHEE 21 13,444 -
Financial assets at fair value RERREAEE
through profit or loss TRz & REE 23 120,112 68,500
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRE e R
receivables H b e Uk 8 24 69,372 68,608
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 16,489 21,624
219,417 158,732
Total assets EE#AE 469,018 231,790
Equity: e
Capital and reserves attributable to EATEE AEAL
owners of the Company B #iE
Share capital [N 26 15,920 3,317
Reserves s 280,072 117,026
Total equity A 205,992 120,343
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MIARRE

As at 31 December 2014 R-—ZT—WE+—-H=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET
Liabilities: a&:
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued charges and other payables FEAS B 32 B oAt FE A5 5B 8,912 3,362
Short-term loan HMEEX 28 55,747 -
64,659 3,362
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Promissory notes A =i 29 108,367 108,085
Total liabilities =Rk 173,026 111,447
Total equity and liabilities ExRkAEHEE 469,018 231,790
Net current assets REBEEFE 154,758 155,370
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERARBERE 404,359 228,428

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015 and signed on its KEREeN _ZT—RAF=A=1+—B#ERBANUT

behalf by: ATREEE:
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
pasyi-1 4 RFE
Director Director
EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 B Bt F 4R G B IS Mk < — 2817 °
financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

BAFFARA R

As at 31 December 2014 MW-Z—ME+—-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 TET FET
Assets: EE:
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI B KRR 17 6,616 7,483
Other tangible assets HthwBREE 18 21,730 -
Interests in subsidiaries ARIEINEIPE: 53 19 279,790 107,102
Conversion options embedded in ATMREBRNE 2 BRRE
convertible notes 22 2,453 -
310,589 114,585
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRmERE 21 13,444 -
Financial assets at fair value RESREZAAEE
through profit or loss TRz &R EE 23 120,112 68,500
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRE - -Ee Rk
receivables H b e U 3R T8 24 28,573 27,808
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTHE R 16,489 21,624
178,618 117,932
Total assets EEHAE 489,207 232,517
Equity: s
Capital and reserves attributable to EATEE AES
owners of the Company B #iE
Share capital & A 26 15,920 3,317
Reserves (G 27 279,108 116,594
Total equity A 295,028 119,911
Liabilities: afF:
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued charges and other payables FEASH R S I HoAth FE A5 5B 8,909 3,360
Short-term loan HEER 28 55,747 -
64,656 3,360
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Statement of Financial Position
AT

As at 31 December 2014 R-—ZT—WE+—-H=+—H

2014 2013
—F-0F =F—=

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET

Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB R R FIAE 19 21,156 1,161
Promissory notes A =i 29 108,367 108,085
129,523 109,246
Total liabilities B8EEE 194,179 112,606
Total equity and liabilities ExRkAEHEE 489,207 232,517
Net current assets REBEEFE 113,962 114,572
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERARBERS 424,551 229,157

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015 and signed on its LEEEeN T —RAF =A==+ —HHERBAT

behalf by: ATREEE:
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
T BRI R¥E
Director Director
EE EBF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 s B F4R A SRR 2 — 50 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SAESRBE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

—OFE+—_A=t—BLLFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KAREEARK
Available-
for-sale
Share financial
option Warrants  asset equity Exchange
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated Total
capital premium (Note (j) (Note (ij) (Note (i) (Note (i) losses equity
THEE
ARER SREE
BRERE i BHfE ERfRE
R R EE (Hi#)) (i) (W) (Hiitly) B3] BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEx T FEx FHEx TR FEx FHER
At 1 January 2013 WZZ-=F-f—-H 1,843 301,426 4,558 498 (7912 47 (90,582) 209,878
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (117,881) (117,881)
Other comprehensive income FREMEPENE
for the year, net of income tax BNBAEHR - - - - 604 601 - 1,205
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FER2ENE/ (BR)
for the year fars) - - - - 604 601 (117,881) (116,676)
Placing iE 368 10,134 - - - - - 10,502
Placing expenses RERT - (566) - - - - - (566)
Rights issue i 1,106 17,689 - - - - - 18,795
Rights issue expenses Mx 53 - (1,590) - - - - - (1,590)
Release upon expiry of warrants WAREE B RERR - - - (409) - - 409 -
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F
1 January 2014 +=A=+-Bk
—Z-mF-f-H 3,317 327,093 4,558 89 (7,308 648 (208,054) 120,343
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (112,941) (112,941)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, EREHZEFE
net of income tax BHBRAER - - - - 4,847 - - 4,847
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ £AZEBELE - - - - 4,847 - (112,941) (108,004)
Recognition of equity settled BREREEENRG A
share-based payments S pA Y - - 24,671 - - - - 24671
Placing [ 2,653 169,818 - - - - - 172,471
Placing expenses RERS - (6,371) - - - - - (5371)
Rights issue iy 9,950 89,552 - - - - - 99,502
Rights issue expenses Lﬁﬂﬁ BE - (7,530) - - - - - (7,530)
Release upon expiry of warrants RRREE R R SR - - - (89) - - 89 -
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-mE+=A=+-A 15,920 573,562 29,229 - (2,461) 648 (320,906) 295,992
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

Share option reserve relates to share options granted under the
Company'’s share option scheme and which are reclassified to share
capital and share premium when the share options were exercised, and
to accumulated losses when the share options were lapsed or expired.

Warrants reserve relates to warrants issued in previous years and
which are reclassified to share capital and share premium when the
warrants were exercised, and released to accumulated losses when
the warrants were lapsed or expired.

Available-for-sale financial asset equity reserve relates to the cumulative
gains or losses arising on the change in fair values of available-for-sale
financial assets that have been recognised in other comprehensive
income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those
financial assets are disposed or impaired.

Exchange reserve relates to the net assets of the Group’s associates’
foreign operations from their functional currency to the associates’
presentation currency.

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Hit:
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

CrEHeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—F

—OFE+—_A=t—BLLFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Hiat FET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBELECRERE
Bank interest income received BUER TR B UL A 1 2
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERE ﬁT’iiE BEAREE
at fair value through profit or loss PR SR E E < TS E 183,620 111,521
Dividend income received B B A 26 697
Cash payments to acquire financial assets ~ WERIBHFXRZ A EBE
at fair value through profit or loss HER 2 & mﬂlﬁﬁzfﬁéﬁ?ﬂlﬁ (180,836) (43,779)
Cash payments to employees ZA FREREZRE&HA (16,351) (10,620)
Cash payments to investment managers LTIREKIE RS IA (1,200) (1,200)
Cash payments to custodian HBTYEE /\Z IR & HIE (75) (114)
Cash payments to other suppliers iA FHMHER RS R (140,447) (38,776)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REEBEEZRS
operating activities GRHE) /RAEBE (155,262) 17,731
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELECZRESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8B W% - /= M & 1E (2,685) (4,4395)
Purchase of other tangible assets BEEMEEE (21,730)
Cash payments to acquire available-for-sale U & 7] T?ﬁ LESREEY
financial assets R e HIE (159,530) -
Cash payments to acquire convertible notes U & Al #2 IR 2= 4% > 38 & 008 - (25,000)
Proceed from redemption/disposal of o HETRREEY
convertible notes FT{S A - 10,000
Amount due from an investee B L i A - (40,800)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lt B Bf B8 R &) - (24,500)
Disposal of subsidiaries & BT E A A 33 20,000 -
Net cash outflow from RETHEEZ
investing activities HERHFEE (163,945) (84,735)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHELECRESRE
Proceeds from placing Be & P15 s008 172,471 10,502
Proceeds from rights issue HARFT1S 3RI8 99,502 18,795
Placing expenses =53 (5,371) (566)
Rights issue expenses HMRFHL (7,530) (1,590)
Proceeds from short-term loan WMHIE RS HRE 55,000 -
Net proceeds from issue of promissory notes 377# X Zi% 2 FBREEE - 39,200
Net cash inflow from METHELZ
financing activities HERAFHE 314,072 66,341
Net decrease in cash and HeRRESEEEHRD
cash equivalents FEE (5,135) (663)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzRekReEEEE
at beginning of the year 21,624 22,287
Cash and cash equivalents FRzASRRAESEEER
at end of the year 16,489 21,624
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERBRESEEEE LRI
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHE S 16,489 21,624

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
#raR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ-ZT—NF&E+_-_A=+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Group is investment in listed and
unlisted companies. Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal office of the Company has been
changed to 20/F., Octa Tower, 8 Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong with effect from 2 February 2015.

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 27
September 2002.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), which is a collective term that includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”), interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, as discussed in Note 4.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

J the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEGSHBEMEE (F)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (c) ZLEREEE (E&)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=E—Z—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=E—Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. Measurement period cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

(e)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (Continued)

(f)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=E—Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures, office equipment,
computer, motor vehicles and yacht, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item
of property comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and
working condition for its intended use. Expenses incurred
after item of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repair and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of assets and as a
replacement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvement 33%
Furniture and fixtures 10-50%
Office equipment 20%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicles 20%
Yacht 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Other tangible assets

Other tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Other tangible assets are derecognised upon disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

64 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014

—mOFE+-A=+—BILFE

2.

(h)

(i)

BETECRBE (&)

M- BERSKE (&)

WERBENE BEREEZ G
FEAFHHNEG A E AWK AE
EHEBEE-FENERMFEAZE
DERMT:

HEMEEE 33%
REMREE 10-50%
FENE ] 20%

E 50%
RE 20%
g 10%
WY¥E BERZEEESHH2AE

REHRR BIZAEB 2KATDRAE
ERNZERHOTR R ME@EMBN S
goMETERE-

AEBERS2HRARRDRREER
AERFHRFER L YIELEER

o

EUE BERZXEELE LEXEHE
TeRFEFREETEELB KRS
AR IEFERZIEE - BWME BB k&E
B R EE 2 E MRS sk B B T IR i &
R BREERmeBr=8ET

WRIEm TR

HtWBWEE

HW AR EERK AR R REEES

HAREEREERKIERER  KRIE
HREEMEES 2T MU EE (%
PEMSHIEFHEEZEIRESEY
EERTE ) RNIRIERZIA B BT A
o



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits
and other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries and
cash and bank balances) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZEZZT—WNFE+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designated eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

During the year, the Group did not hold any financial liabilities
at fair value in this category.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including accrued charges and
other payables, short-term loan and promissory notes) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, (where
appropriate), a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

()

(m)

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as an
equity instrument.

The fair value of warrants on the date of issue is recognised
in equity (warrants reserve). The warrants reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium upon
exercise of the warrants. Where the warrants remain
unexercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in warrants reserve will be released to the
retained earnings or accumulated losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables.

Revenue represents dividend income from securities
investments, bank interest income, other interest/dividend
income from financial assets and net gain/loss on financial
assets at FVTPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i. Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

ii. Interest income from financial assets including
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which are the
rates that exactly discounts and the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

i Net gain/loss on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contracts are executed.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESHHEME (&)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o) BimE (&)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—E—NE+—-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BETECRBE (&)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o) HE (&)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(P)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Provisions

(r)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group has participated in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Group. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the MPF Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-_ZT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions

Equity settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based transactions are set out in Note 36.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Leasing

v)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group, if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(Continued)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(V)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

84 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014

—mOFE+-A=+—BILFE

2.

(v)

BETECRBE (&)

BEEAL (&)

il BB T HIE R - — 77 Bl AR 5 B AN &2 (8]
BRE: (&)

(b) 1%1??/:.\T§|M£ﬂ1 - AIE g EA
SEERE

nllP

EREREEBR—£H
ZWE’AE (BNZR A - M
NIV AEEN Gl PNCIE {4
MARE) o

(i)

(ii) *ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ %g
NAEHE & ®
%%Wéfﬁzﬁlﬁ W

BRRAZBEATNRAED

—EE=ZFE®
E—EBEER

B i]
REZNERZIBERT -

[ 5 B AR 5% [
518 B 18 F &%
EI 1R 1R ﬂ BRI

)Jﬂfh}*}
| FR oA
&I

vi) ZEBX@BEM#HN2ALT
% 3 % AR o

(vii) ()BT A THZE
EEAVENXEBEZE
(HZEBZERAEE
EEMKS -

g EE‘E fie



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —ZT—MNE+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTBERBE (F)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(w) Foreign currencies (Continued) (w) M (&)

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in . REPETINER B MET 2R S
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and ZERERE: R

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable o  BIRSKEMNBIINEBZEKIERZ
from or payable to a foreign operation for which BN =% MEMREFIEE LT
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur AN geAEE (E LB RO8INEER
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the BFfEz B0 ZEEHER
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in TFREAMEE W SRR LR E
other comprehensive income and reclassified from BEEKBERAERESN Y EEE
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary AR ©
items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial REVEGEMBERE  AKEBINEE 2

statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign BENMNBEBEERANSE2HRBARBTZ

operations are translated into the presentation currency of EXRELSAEE 225 E% (BT) -

the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates W EREAFIIERBRE  HEWZ

prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and HMAERAEES EXZEHZ

expense items are translated at the average exchange rates EEBRE-TEEZELEZSE (HE)R

for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly Ht2HEWaEER  WRE ﬁT’i A 2 I

during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the BHAFBRS (REABREENIEE

dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences fRfEz) o

arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign

currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the EHEBIINER (AL EREEREI

Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal Bz e HESRAEBEEIN

involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a X oMB AR ZEHIE L E

foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a REEBIEE (ERBERK AR

joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign BE)ZBETY B E R AR 2#ER) -

operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial RABEB AEIEZES MRS Rt

asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity ZHBELEZREENNEEERE -

in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(x)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are effective for the
Group’s financial period beginning 1 January 2014. A summary of
the new HKFRSs is set out below:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Levies

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

The application of these new HKFRSs has not had any material
impact on the amounts reported for the current year and prior
years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements. The impact of the application of the new HKFRSs is
discussed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE - =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity and
require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment
entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure
its subsidiaries at FVTPL in its consolidated and separate financial
statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment
entities.

Impact of the application of HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to
the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation and
settlement’. The amendments require retrospective application.
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AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKAS 36

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a CGU to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements applicable when the
recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value
less costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used which
are in line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements.

Impact of the application of HKAS 39

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the requirement
to discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative designated
as a hedging instrument is novated under certain circumstances.
The amendments also clarify that any change to the fair value of
the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising from the
novation should be included in the assessment and measurement
of hedge effectiveness. The amendments require retrospective
application.

Impact of the application of HK (IFRIC) - Int 21

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses the issue as to when to recognise a
liability to pay a levy imposed by a government. The Interpretation
defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy,
as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance
on how different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in
particular, it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the
going concern basis of financial statements preparation implies
that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be
triggered by operating in a future period. HK (IFRIC) — Int 21
requires retrospective application.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The application of these new HKFRSs had no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustments had been required.

New HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle’

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)  Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers®
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE TR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative®

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable

(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants*
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
(Amendments) Contributions’

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

g Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and was further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-E—MNE+-A=+—HILtFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

° An exception from the general requirement of full gain or loss
recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10 for the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method.

° New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains or
losses resulting from those transactions are recognised in
the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement at fair
value of investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKAS 28:

. The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that do
not constitute a business.

° A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets that
constitute a business between an entity and its associate
or joint venture must be recognised in full in the investor’s
financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should be
accounted for as a single transaction.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011) /nvestment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

The narrow-scope amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 introduce clarifications to the requirements when
accounting for investment entities. The amendments also provide
relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce the costs of
applying the standards.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and
other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets regarding
impairment testing of a CGU to which goodwill on acquisition
of a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation of a joint
operation if and only if an existing business is contributed to the
joint operation by one of the parties that participate in the joint
operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant information
required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for business
combinations. The amendments require retrospective application.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgement in determining what
information to disclose in their financial statements. For example,
the amendments make it clear that materiality applies to the
whole of financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial
information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining where and in what order
information is presented in the financial disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for
amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group uses the straight-
line method for depreciation for its property, plant and equipment.
The directors of the Company believe that the straight-line method
is the most appropriate method to reflect the consumption
of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets and
accordingly, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equjpment and
HKAS 41 Agriculture define a bearer plant and require biological
assets that meet the definition of a bearer plant to be accounted
for as property, plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS
16, instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants
continues to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third parties to
defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions are
dependent on the number of years of service provided by the
employees.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years
of service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as
a reduction of the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’ periods
of service using the projected unit credit method; whereas for
contributions that are dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity is required to attribute them to the employees’ periods of
service.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements

o At cost;

° In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted HKFRS
9); or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be an
investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall account
for the change from the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and to
HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The directors of the Company is in the process of assessing the
potential impact of the new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to
determine whether the new HKFRSs will have a significant impact
on how its results of operations and financial position are prepared
and presented. The new HKFRSs may result in changes in the
future as to how the results and financial position are prepared and
presented.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 2, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of AFS financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 when determining
whether an investment in AFS financial assets is other than
temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
AFS financial asset is less than its cost, and the expected time
span the Group will hold on to this investment.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for other receivables
resulting from the inability of the debtors to make the required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the other receivable balance, receivables creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the
receivables were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Estimated impairment of interest in associate

In determining whether there is an impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows to be
generated by the associate. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
interest in associate and the share of the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the associate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of the
business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Share-based payment

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 2 when determining
the fair value of the share options granted at the grant date.
This determination requires significant estimate. In making this
judgment, the Group incorporates all factors and assumptions
that knowledgeable, willing market participants would consider in
setting the price and the valuation technique should be consistent
with the generally accepted valuation methodologies for pricing
financial instruments.

Fair value of AFS financial assets

The fair value of AFS financial assets that are not traded in
active market is determined by valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable
market data and make assumptions that are primarily based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Note 5¢ provide detailed information about key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives
are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands. The Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TEAREXRREABER
RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Categories of financial instruments (@) =T EER
The Group NE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets SHEE
AFS financial assets AHHESREE 208,308 41,892
Conversion options embedded AR EE NS T R
in convertible notes 2,453 -
Financial assets at FVTPL REXREEALEE
FIRR G RVEE 120,112 68,500
Loans and receivables EH R ERSZIE (e
(including cash and cash equivalent) B4 RBELZEER) 82.813 82 541
413,686 192,933
Financial liabilities SHER
At amortised cost RSP R 173,026 111,447
The Company ¥ NN
2014 2013
—E2-mF —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Financial assets SRMEE
AFS financial assets AEHESREE 13,444 -
Conversion options embedded AR ERNE 2 RARE
in convertible notes 2,453 -
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREAAEE
PRz eRVEE 120,112 68,500
Loans and receivables ER R EYIE (B1E
(including cash and cash equivalent) RekBeFHELR) 297,865 148,843
433,874 217,343
Financial liabilities SREE
At amortised cost RERE AR 194,179 112,606
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £€RIEAERELXAERMREE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives b) e@EREEBERBE

and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
AFS financial assets, conversion options embedded in
convertible notes, financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. The main purpose of holding these financial
instruments is to generate short term appreciation gain
and gain from trading of these financial instruments. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as other
receivables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed
and measured. Details of sensitivity analysis for foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk are set out below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £€RIAERELXAERREE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) TRAEEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) i E B ()
Foreign currency risk S

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group carries out its business mainly
in Hong Kong and all of the transactions are denominated
in HK$. The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in HK$, except certain bank balances and
financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in United State
dollar. As Hong Kong dollar are pegged to United State
dollar, it is assumed that there would be no material currency
risk exposure between these two currencies. The Group
does not have any formal hedging policies.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to

SNERRESRTAZEEREXRE S

MEB AR AEBTERFTELSE
% MABRZEANETE - ANEE
ZEERBEIESNETFE EE
TRITEHB IR EERRALEBEIIK
ZEBMEERETE -BRNBTESE
T WMREAMNEEE 2R EEX
=l N N YL T s W '
o

FI& 2
AEBZRERENXERETEEEY

the Group's variable interest bearing bank balances, fixed BIR1THSB RBaRIZQAAEBTIE
interest bearing financial assets at FVTPL, short-term loan JEBSREE RHEREEALER

and promissory notes. The exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk is minimal. The Group did not enter into interest rate
swap to hedge against its exposures.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk related to
the Group’s interest bearing AFS financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to fair value interest rate risk at the reporting
date:

| 06 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014

FE-BHERENEARBRTRE K
SEYETLMNERAMR S A HE
[V -

AEBEHEAREFRAUHEESR
BEEHUCAREENERR-



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continueq)

If the fair value interest rate had been 50 basis points (2013:
50 basis point) higher or lower and all other variable held
constant, the Group’s:

o AFS financial asset equity reserves would increase
or decrease by approximately HK$67,000 (2013:
HK$NIl) as a result of the changes in fair value of AFS
financial assets.

The Group has no exposure to interest rate on financial
liabilities except for the short-term loan and promissory
notes.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities and commodities
price risk because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated statement of financial position
either as AFS financial assets or as financial assets at FVTPL.
To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities and commodities futures contracts, the Group
diversifies its portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £€RIAERELXAERREE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) TRAEEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) i E B ()

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the equity prices had been 5% higher or lower:

- Loss before tax for the year ended 31 December
2014 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$6,006,000 (2013: approximately HK$3,425,000).
This is mainly due to change in fair value of held for
trading investments.

— AFS financial asset equity reserve would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$10,415,000 (2013:
approximately HK$2,095,000). This is mainly due to
change in fair value of AFS financial assets.

The Group’s and the Company’s sensitivity to price risk
have increased during the year mainly due to the increase in
investments in financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial
assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s and
the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
bank balances, other receivables and amounts due from
subsidiaries, arises from default of the counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group and the
Company also have credit policies in place and exposures
to credit risks regards other receivables are mentioned on an
ongoing basis.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Company does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £€RIEAERELXAERMREE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) EHEAKREEBEZEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk TEEL R
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests EEgoFEENECRARIERA
with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate A VERELEEZRDECRRE R
liquidity risk management framework to meet the Group’s B UENASEE 2R R E R K
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity EeRRBESCEEENK.

management requirements.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s TRFINAEBERARRFESBEE
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities which ZARTEHNH(BEINARERRBES
are included in the maturity analysis provided internally to the RimmEEEEAB RN 2 5 E
key management personnel for the purpose of managing DMA) cFIEPTEBEM S BEEIR
liquidity risk. For non-derivative liabilities, the tables reflect [ BRAR 35 7K £ B K K ) B] 48 SRR 3R
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based ZEFASHEZCHABRMERS
on the earliest date on which the Group and the Company ME-BBAINKREEMNERASHE SR
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and = o
principal cash flows.
The Group NE
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years years amount amount
MR
BRAIE - WFERF BAEE ANBAE 4LERELE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T TR TR TR
2014 —2-RF
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTECRAE
Accrued charges and other payables  E RIS R KA FE(S 5008 - 8,912 - - 8,912 8,912
Short-term loan EHER 7.00 55,905 = = 55,905 55,747
Promissory notes EALRE 5.35 5,500 22,000 127,500 155,000 108,367
70,317 22,000 127,500 219,817 173,026

=
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. €I AREARRKREE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) cREKREEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nEBELEE (E)
The Group (Continued) AEE (&)
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 210 Over5  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years years amount amount
MEFH
BIRA= —£A WEEDF BBLF ARRLE LROLE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT TAT TAT TAT FHIT

2013 .
Non-derivative financial liabilities #fT££RAE
Accrued charges and other payables [ {5 5 52 %t fE 15 5008 - 3,362 - - 3,362 3,362
Promissory notes EREE 5.35 5,500 22,000 117,500 145,000 108,085
8,862 22,000 117,500 148,362 111,447
The Company AT
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year 5years years amount amount
mEEH
BBRF= —-FR  MFERF BBEF AMRLE LEESE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TEx THET THER
2014 —EB-|mf
Non-derivative financial liabilities T &BEE
Accrued charges and other payables RIS R E A fE( 5B - 8,912 - - 8,912 8,912
Short-term loan RHER 7.00 55,905 - - 55,905 55,747
Amounts due to subsidiaries R BARRE - - 21,156 - 21,156 21,156
Promissory notes AEER 5.35 5,500 22,000 127,500 155,000 108,367
70,317 43,156 127,500 240,973 194,182
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

5. TMTAREFARARERE (H)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) SRIEREEEZEREEK (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TBELREE (E)
The Company (Continued) AT (HE)
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to0 Over5  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years years amount amount
MEFH
BIRA= —En  WEERE BERE ARRAE AFEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T THET THET
2013 —T-=F
Non-derivative financial liabilites FT4- ¢®EE
Accrued charges and other payables  FE{ 537 Je Lt fE 508 - 3,362 - - 3,362 3,362
Amount due to a subsidiary NG ] - - 1,161 - 1,161 1,161
Promissory notes ERER 5.35 5,500 22,000 117,500 145,000 108,085
8,862 23,161 117,500 149,623 112,608

(c)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

(i)

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices
and ask prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input. For an option-based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model (for example, the binomial option pricing
model).
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AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values except for
the promissory notes.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

| | 2 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. €@ TIAEREARKERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) DAREBEME (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the RELHBERBEERZ AREEE
consolidated statement of financial position (#&)
(Continued)
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-mf ERE Epr B3R |t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tz Tz TR Tz
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL REREREALEE
Sk e REE 120,112 - - 120,112
Conversion options embedded AMAREBENE 2 RkE
in convertible notes - - 2,453 2,453
AFS financial assets THEESRHEE
Unlisted debt securities FLrmERES - - 13,444 13,444
Unlisted equity securities FEMRAE S - - 194,864 194,864
120,112 - 210,761 330,873
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—T—=F E1R Fof F3M G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TRT TRT TRT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL REBZREALER
SR e REE 68,500 - - 68,500
AFS financial assets HEESHEE
Unlisted equity securities FELEMRAES - - 41,892 41,892
68,500 - 41,892 110,392
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both RWEFE  F1REFNR 2 Y EE
years. &
EmiRgEe s AR 01458 | |3
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A SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. €I AREARRKREE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAREEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CHEEFIRAAEBEFTEZHEKR
of financial assets

Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted embedded in
equity debt convertible
2014 securities securities notes Total
LW ¥Em  TERREE
—E-MmE RAES BEES REZBRE &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERr TER TER
Opening balance FENiek 41,892 - - 41,892
Gains or losses recognised in: RTFIE B #ER
WasskEE:
— profit or loss -BRx (10,933) 916 8,771) (13,788)
- other comprehensive income -H2EbE 4,375 472 - 4,847
Purchases BE 159,530 - - 159,530
Reclassification EEibN ] - 12,056 6,224 18,280
Closing balance FIREE 194,864 13,444 2,453 210,761
Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted  embedded in
equity debt convertible
2013 securities securities notes Total
JEEm EEm  AREREE
=== PR E % E%ESF RazRkE Bt
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT T FHT TAT
Opening balance FEH 42,413 15,638 - 58,051
Gains or losses recognised in: RTFIE B #ER
WassiEE:
— profit or loss -Bax - (6,142) (12) (6,154)
- other comprehensive income —Hip2mEiE (521) (6,276) - (6,797)
Purchases EE - 24,988 12 25,000
Disposal HE - (10,000) - (10,000)
Reclassification ENDE - (18,208) - (18,208)
Closing balance FiREH 41,892 - - 41,892

| | 4 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE-E—MNE+-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

The gains or losses include in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years
related to recognition of interest income, derecognition and
impairment loss of unlisted debt securities.

All of the above gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income for the current year related to the fair
value change in unlisted equity securities and unlisted debt
securities held at the end of the reporting period and are
reported as changes of “AFS financial asset equity reserve”.

5. TMTAREFARARERE (H)

(c)

D RAEEME (&)

EREEFIRAABETABZHE
(4)

SAAERFEESABa R EMEH IS
Rz Wk E R T A BRI WA &
IFHERFE L MEFESF R ERMERE-

ALt A\EEAFEEMb2m ke
Z s MR T A BN 2 MR IE
EIBRABHFRFLTEBESFZIAR
{ETE“@J HE%Q@JEF\[—H HESR

mnaEeamAF 01458 | |5
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. @I AREARREE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAREEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements ESHEEFIRAABEF;EZHER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities AEEBHeREERERBERSE

are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting WMEARIE AR EETE - TREHEDMA

period. The following table gives information about how the ErZSeniEkeRAREANEE

fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities (FRIRMAZHERTG KRB ASRE) 2

are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and A x}o

inputs used).

Fair value as at
RTI5IREZ A RER Fairvalue Valuation techniques
Financial assets hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2014 31 December 2013 HERTR

EREE Z2-M@%+ZB=t-B CB-ZF+ZA=t-H MEBZR TERAUE EATTRERARE

1) Listed equity securities In Hong Kong: HK$120,112,000  In Hong Kong: HK$58,318,000 Level 1 Quoted bid pricesinan ~ N/A
classified as financial assets In Singapore: HK$10,150,000 active market
at FVTPL Note 25) Overseas: HK$32,000

1) PEARBREEAABE RNEE: 12011200081 REE : 58,318,000 T 18 ERETSMBEAE  TEA
Sk eMEEL AR £ 10,150,000/ T
RS (H7223) 785 32,000% 7T

2)  Conversion options embedded Conversion options embedded ~ N/A Level 3 Binomial option pricing  The expected share price volatilty is 51.05%
in convertible notes classified  in convertible notes issued by model (Note (i) with reference to 4.15-year historical weekly
as financial assets at FVTPL  Premium Castle Limited (Note (1) volatilities of comparable companies, a risk free
(Note 22) - HK$2,453,000 rate of 1.318% and a risky rate of 10.11%.

The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2014,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 9.31%,
and it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease of 10% in
the volatiity would have increased/decreased
the fair value of the option by approximately
HK$48,000/HK$51,000.

2 DEBNBERELAEE  APremium Castle Limited®1T2 TEA E34 CHABRTERY  BUREREAS05% N2RTELRARL
Sk eREEL ARRENE ke (Hitip) 415EBEGERE  BRBHZ1.318%RE
ARFENEZ (Fiity)) —2,453000% T EBFE101%EE
ki (fritee)

MEEHBECREZELARE -R-F
—ME+-A=+-B HEFREREEAR
9.31% EEFMFLMEULRTE RIFE
N/ RPI0%EERBERER A BELN,/
448,000 7T/51,000% T o

3 Unlisted equity securities 0.89% equity investment in HEC  0.92% equity investmentinHEC ~ Level 3 Market approach The price to book ratio of the comparable
classified as AFS Capital Limited (Note () - Capital Limited (Note () - (Note (1) companies is considered in the valuation to
financial assets (Note 21) HK$56,140,000; HK$41,892,000 reflect the condition that there are premium or

discount on its stock price and its book value as
at valuation date.

3 PBAUMMESBEEZ  HHEC Capita LimitedZ TAHEC Capital Limited 2 34 TEE (M) HEZENELBARAZMEE  URBERRE
FEMBAES (Mito1)  089WRAKE (Hizty) 0.92%BAKE (M) B RERSRERMAERTELE

—56,140,000% 7T : —41,892,000% T e

| | 6 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



For the year ended 31 December 2014 & & —

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Fair value as at
RTSRHZAAER
Financial assets
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
SREE ZB-ME+ZA=+-B ZB-ZFE+ZBZ+-H

1.80% equity investment in N/A
Freeman Corporation Limited
(Note (i) - HK$50,154,000;

REEERERNEZ TER
1.80%BRARE (A1)
—50,154, 00037 :

8% equity investment N/A
in Smart Role Limited
(Note (i) - HK$59,503,000;

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

#rE TSR
—EFE+=A=+—ALLFE

5. TMTAREFARARERE (H)

(c) DREEME (&)
CHMEEFEIRNLAABENEZHIR

(#&)
Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
HERHR

DABESR FEBAHE EATUBRGARE

Discount for lack of marketability, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities
in similar industries at 25% (2013: 21%). If
the discount rate was 5% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of unlisted equity securities
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$936,000.

SRENAE LTER REETRZ TAR
B2 IERS% (ZE—-ZF:21%) - 18
BE L7/ TES% MR RERART
& B FRARS  BESEREYD /B
1047936,000% 7t °

The price to book ratio of the comparable
companies is considered in the valuation to
reflect the condition that there are premium or
discount on fts stock price and its book value as
at valuation date.

Level 3 Market approach
(Note ()

Discount for lack of marketability, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities
in similar industries at 25% (2013: Nil. If the
discount rate was 5% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of unlisted equity securities
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$836,000.

BEZEAELRAR MEE INREERME
%H B RESEAAEMEERTRLE
V.

SRENTE LAER REERRZTERE
Wz fimAR2% (2% &) MHRE
LIt/ THe% MAEEMESARTE A
FETRAZS KA ERAD/EIE
836,000 °

Prices for each species were taken from on-site
research and interview, official construction
cost journals, local practitioners, and forestry
products industry information in the PRC from
various websites in the public domains. No
allowances for transportation were considered
as these costs are normally paid for by the
buyer. However, the referenced prices adopted
are after allowance for the uprooting and
loading. If the prices parameters was 5%
higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of unlisted
equity securities would decrease/increase
by approximately RMBA40,000,000/
RMB30,000,000.

234 m5E (W)

Level 3 Comparable sales
approach (Note (Vi)

Reasonable recovery rates were applied to allow
for losses before and during harvesting for each
species at the representation of the appointed
personnel of the Group’s management. If the
recovery rates was 5% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of unlisted equity securities
would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB40,000,000.

AmiE e sRAR 01455 | |/
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TAREXRREKRERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) A2AEEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements HEEFIRAAREBEFTEZHER
of financial assets (Continued) (&)

Fair value as at
RTNBHZAAEE Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
Financial assets hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2014 31 December 2013 HERGR
SREE “2-ME+-A=+-B —B-=F+-A=t-AH DAEESR FERABE EATIBERARE
FASmart Role LimitedZ TR EXT AAHBHES. EHAREZEEIRARNALRSE B
8%IRARE (M) R BREARTE A ENATURTRAARE
—59,503,00077T ¢ W RERERTEEN -ARNERER R
BERXM HTELEEMER AW Hik

BZ2£EENRERRERESEBA -NE
BEY LT/ THS% MATAEHEEHEST
2 B EMRAR A RESESRD
04 A& 40,000,007,/ A K #30,000,000
e

fFREAEBERERAZAR ARAECE
RABUEE L2 EREXBAGENK
RE B R A% KR LT /T
B6%  MABAMERARTE AL
kAES  RECERAD / ENHARE

40,000,000z °
50% equity investment N/A Level 3 Market approach Market comparable ranges from EUR5,700,000
in Kingswood Shine Limited (Note (1) to EURG,000,000 and the individual factors
(Note (i) - HK$29,067,000 considered are time and quality of the yacht.
The longer time and poor quality, the lower the
fair value.
REBERRTLZ TR £3% TEE (M) 45t 8 &8 35,700,008 7T £6,000,00080
S0%RARE (Hith)) T MAZEENRRRER BRREE
—29,067,0008 7 REURRZEME AAABEMEE-
4) Unlisted debt securities Convertible notes issued by N/A Level 3 Amortised cost method  Risk free rate of 1.33%, a risky rate of 10.11% and
classified as AFS Premium Castle Limited (Note (ix) acoupon rate of 2%.

financial assets (Note 21) (Note (1)) - HK$13,444,000

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2014,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 9.31%,
and itis estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease of 10%
points in the volatility would have decreased/
increased the fair value of the convertible notes
by approximately HK$411,000/HK$429,000.

& HERMENMESHEEL  hPremium Castle Limited®{72 TR 3 BERAE (Witly)  BEBRAE13% ARRFIEI01BRZEER
FEmERES (M)  TRRER (Wiy) 2%
—13,444,000%5 7

AABEHERERASEREEENE -RC-F
—“mE+ZA=+-RH HEMEEREEA
931% R FEE M EEHTE  RIREM
SR EERTAREE AL BER D/
$1141411,000% 7T,/ 429,000% 7T ©

| | 8 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



5. FINANC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

IAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair

value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

HEC Capital Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability on
11 April 2012, which is principally engaged in investment
holding.

Freeman Corporation Limited (formerly known as
Advance Best Limited) is an exempted company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability on 28
June 2013, which is principally engaged in investment
holding.

Smart Role Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability
on 7 November 2013, which is principally engaged in
investment holding.

Kingswood Shine Limited is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability on 25 July 2014, which is
principally engaged in investment holding.

On 24 December 2013, the Company subscribed a new
convertible note issued by Premium Castle Limited with
principal amount of HK$18,600,000. The completion of
the subscription took place on 25 February 2014.

The market approach determines the fair value of the
assets by reference to the transaction prices, or valuation
multiples implicit in the transactions prices, of identical or
similar assets on the market.

Comparable sales approach is the present market value
in terms of price per unit volume of the final product and
the total merchantable volume of each species in the
concession as basis for coming up with the estimated
value. The underlying theory of this approach is existing
market price is dependent parameter since it reflects how
much the buyer is willing to pay and how much the seller
is willing to receive to give up his goods and services.

Binomial option pricing model determines the fair value
of the assets by adopting discrete time, non-closed
form model of varying price over time of the underlying
instruments.

Amortised cost method is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment on
uncollectibility.

5. TRITAREXRERERE (&

DN REEMEE (&)
EREEFIRAABEETABZHE
(%)

it :

()  HEC Capital Limited & —Z — — 47
A+—BERSESEMK L 2 EH
RAERAT  EBUEREERES -

(c)

iy REZEBRERAR (FIBBELEERA
A ABR=E—=FA=+/\BEH
EHEFMK 2 ERRER A
FEREREITRES-

@iy ~ Smart Role Limited B — & — =4
T—AtRERBEXES MK
ZERRAERAR FEREREE
AR -

ivv #RmBERARIAR-ZT—NFLA
—+tHEBEEBEFMALZERA
A FEREREIERER -

v RZTE—=F+ZA=Z+WMHE AR
7] 32 B8 f Premium Castle LimitedFf 2%
17784 %8 518,600,000/ JT 2 3 7] &
BEE FREER T —NF =
A-+HBZRK-

(vi) TIEERBRmE LARSKEUEEZ
KREHKRERE 2 HEEHET
BEZANAEBE

Vi) ATELLBHEERASHARBRR
EmZBRIME(RSEMHEER
FE) RS AR HEMNKBERE
UG EARGEEE HEZ
EARBA/RTHERKE2E
HERMESTBENBZEBREEDH
EHEY MRHRB MEE KA E
1& e

IR HIAE R (B AR EL IR R AR B

(#EFA T A EREER M A TR 2 3F
MEANBEL) BEEEEZANEE

(il

(x) BERAEANVTHERRAESH
BEZSBRASER  SIMAZR
ERSeREN R M ERE
NEBRM SR E Z REt#HE B3
E 0N AT YR B M1 2 R (B 2 ({40

piaRegRAT 01458 | 19
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE -—ZE—NE+_-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £€RIAERELXAERREE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Capital risk management (d) EXRERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2013.

The capital structure of the Group consists of nearly no
debt except for the promissory notes and short-term loan.
It finances its operation primary through equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
share premium, share option reserve, warrants reserve,

%
)53
=

=

REEEEEERN UEREAEE
BEFERS YRABEBELE
Bamo it S E=A@LHES
B3R ALy BERE T —
LL BRI 4 B

4HHI

1] %ﬂm §§# ?%’&
w®

&

BRARRBRREHEFIN AEBZR
ARBEFIEEH -AEEETREB
ARFER AEEHES (BREEA  BH
wE BEERE ARESFHE R
HESRmEERERE ELRERR
AAER) RERERNES-

AFS financial asset equity reserve, exchange reserve and
accumulated losses.

BEXAREILE

AEERAREFRB U BERT R
BASEZRE REKPR2ELE
B E (ABEBEERAERERAE)

Gearing ratio

The Group has adopted a higher finance leverage compared
to the last year. Based on the Group’s policy, the gearing
ratio, as calculated as total debt divided by total equity at the

end of the reporting period was as follows: I
2014 2013
—R—-AF B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Debt (Note (j)) &% (Mat0) 173,026 111,447
Equity (Note (i) R (I aE0) 295,992 120,343
Gearing ratio BEABMELE 58.5% 92.6%
Notes: Kiat
0] Debt comprises accrued charges and other payables, 0] BT B 15 FE A 7 S I LAt JE < 5K78

RHERREAEERE-

short-term loan and promissory notes.

(i) REBEARREBABEZAEER
KR

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by both business lines and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Board, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, the Group has
presented its reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

Business segment

The Group operates one segment for both years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. All of the Group’s revenue was derived
from investment income from investments in listed securities,
unlisted securities and commodities futures contracts. Accordingly,
the Group does not have separately reportable segment.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong and

Singapore. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

e TR M
~mET=A=+—ALFE
7 EEH
AERERBEFS B EREL LR 2515
RRERFESH (DEBLEREE) D

REREFESRRBZABRSE — B0 A&
ERANBEVBEREENESRMEIN A2
BOBWT

%7']'5{/'\*

HE_T-NEE_T—=F+_A=+—H
IEREFEA AEELE —HIH A5E
ZWEEEHRAKRE LTESF ELTEEFR
ARBEEHZEEWRA Ut - NEB I &

BT 2|HHE
i B & R

AEBZEBETBURES R IME - AEE
BiwEmHE D 2 WES T TR

Revenue by

geographical market

RitEH 5 E Dz WE
2014 2013
—ZE-—mF —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong s> 55,656 (45,028)
Singapore T hni 824 2,425
56,480 (42,603)

AR anesRAT 01455 | 2|
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.
Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current

assets (excluding AFS financial assets and ¢

embedded in convertible notes) analysed by the geographical area

in which the assets are located:

DEER (F)
%o E (#)

onversion options

FRESBEBOTAT

BREEMEMRE D ZIRDEE (TREA
HHESMEERATBRRERAS 2 ]AE)

Carrying amount
of non-current assets

FRBEECRASE
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —z—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FHT

Hong Kong

BB 52,284

31,166

No single customer of the Group contributed 1
Group’s revenue for both years.

7. REVENUE

The amount of significant category of revenue
the year is as follow:

0% or more to the
YEHI10%3k LA B ke

7. W&

recognised during

2014
—g-ms
HK$’000
FiER

AEERMEFEHREE TP AKBEE

RERNETRCERRSSBLT

2013
—F-=

HK$'000

T

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL

MIEERE A EEIIRZ

(Note) SRMEEZIE (EE)
SRR (HET) 54,397 (47,049)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1 2
Interest income from AFS financial assets AtEESREEZFEWA 1,232 1,322

Interest income from financial assets RIEEREAAEBEYEKZ
at FVTPL SRLEE N EHA 824 2,425

Dividend income from financial assets REBRZREAREEYEZ
at FVTPL EMEEZREMA 26 697
56,480 (42,603)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. W3 (4E)
Note: B = -
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL represented: REBEREARNBEIEZSREE 2 W/ (B
B)FERK:
Equity and Commodities
debt securities futures contracts Total
BRAREBES BRBEEN @zt
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-mf —T-=Ff C-E-mf <—T-=F C-E-Nm§ <—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TEL TR THL T TEL
Proceeds on Sales WEMBIE 183,682 111,669 62 (148) 183,620 111,521
Less: Cost of Sales B EERA (162,704) (142,368) @ (183) (162,706) (142,551)
20,978 (30,699) (64) (331) 20,914 (31,030)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on financial R EHRIE AL EE
assets at FVTPL FIRzeREEY
RERWE/
(B#) 33,483 (16,051) - 32 33,483 (16,019)
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets A EBRRIX DA EE
at FVTPL FIEZEMEEY
Wi/ (BR)FE 54,397 (47,049)
OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttlg A
2014 2013
—¥—MmF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Sundry income FERIA 210 1
Interest income from other receivables H e Wk IE 2 A B A 55 79
265 80

AmiRaRe gRAT 01458 | 23
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A B E RN

2N =1

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

o.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. @EKAK
2014 2013
—T-mEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interest expenses on promissory notes EHEBRZFBRE 5,783 5,426
Interest expenses on short-term loan REERZFERX 747 -
Interest expenses on securities trading BEBEBE2HNERX 17 113
6,547 5,539
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FAEBIMAX
Current taxation BYHA B 18
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the HRAEERBE-_Z—NF+=-A=+—H
Group incurred a tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2014, IFFERRBEEE R EREEFESHIE
R o
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the HRAEEREE=T—=F+=-A=+—H
Group utilised the tax losses previously not recognised for the year IEFEERTFERTRRZHIASE SO E
ended 31 December 2013. MEBEFEHIEL B -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ERE R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. FR8BiBAX (&)
Current taxation (Continued) BUHABLIE (48)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to loss FRMESHAS GG B REMEAKER
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ZBRFTIST A BB YR T -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013
“E-mF —E-—=
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
T % T %
I
Loss before income tax BRETS TR B (112,941) (117,881)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BEENEHE16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (ZT—=%:165%)
FEZER (18,635) 16.5 (19,450) 16.5
Estimated tax effect on income that is not ETERTRNEBERM
taxable in determining taxable profit WAz R BB & 8,981 (8.0) (632) 05
Estimated tax effect on expenses that are not FETE FEART R s AN Al F1 R
deductible in determining taxable profit S WALTp 4 (348) 0.3 4,038 (3.4)
Estimated tax effect of unrecognised AEREREB AANBYE
temporary difference 1,639 (1.4) (3,310) 2.8
Estimated tax effect of unrecognised tax losses KRR EEE 2 H:t B E 8,363 (7.4) 19,354 (16.4)

Tax income and effective tax rate for the year FARBERARERRE - - - -

=
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. FREE
2014 2013
—2—mF =E==5
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Loss for the year has been arrived after FREBTEHNR TS IEER:
charging:
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR EM B & 350 200
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments 2 5 R /TERAE BN & (A7:713)
(Note 13) 5,219 4,045
Total staff costs, excluding directors’ BETRA(TREEEHE)
emoluments 13,554 8,149
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - = K& & BT E 4,660 2,871
Legal and professional fee FREREEER 2,212 1,663
Operating lease rental in respect of land and T REFZLEHERS
building 14,039 7,243
Equity settled share-based payment expenses & 18 45 & LARR (5 AR 3k 2 24,671 -
Fair value change on AFS financial assets HEEBRERaR2AIHEE
transfer from equity to profit and loss CREEZANEBESE - 7,401
Impairment loss on amount due from FEUER & AR FIB 2 RIEEE
an associate - 4,454

12. NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

12. ZARFEEARIEERFE

KABHEBEABGGEBR(ZE—=F:
ER)ERARAMBERRACEEZE
84992,204,0008 L (Z T —=F : HIEH
110,983,000 7T ) °

The consolidated loss (2013: loss) attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of approximately HK$92,204,000 (2013:
loss of approximately HK$110,983,000) which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

13. EERTRARNE

BE—_T-WER—"FT—=FF=—H=+—H
FtEEEMENER(ZE—=ZF tR)E
ERTHAHSAZHMES NS LT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2013:
seven) directors and the chief executive for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 —E-{F
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
Bk
S TRARES He e HApER sFEIMR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR TR THER TERT
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) ABREEAE () - 756 1,680 17 2,453
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick (Note () RFERE (M) - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEERE = 217 = 14 201
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Note (i) BEE L L (W) - 378 - 17 395
Mr. Gao Chengming (Note (i) =K E (i) - - = = =
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Note (iv)) BEERE (W) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen BEHRLE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin A RE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Law Tze Lun (Note (i) BRYGHRE (W) - 189 - - 189
Chief Executive Officer THER
Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent (Note (j) BEERE (M) - 1,118 - 17 1,135
- 3,474 1,680 65 5,219
2013 —R-E=F
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
VLS 2 ik 2 Hib g7 AT A3t
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TET FET FHEL THEL
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) ABREEE () - 756 1,680 15 2,451
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick (Chief Executive Officer) R F L4 (1THRAR) - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEERE - 277 - 14 291
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng THEEL+ - 378 - 15 393
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen BEHRLE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin kA - 189 - - 189
Mr. Wong Sin Lai (Note (1)) TEERE (M) - 144 - - 144
Mr. Law Tze Lun (Note () BEHRE (W7t) - 10 - - 10
- 2,321 1,680 44 4,045
AR ERe ARAR 014ER | 2/



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TS IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) on 19 May 2014. Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent
appointed as the CEO on the same date.

(ii) Ms. Yang Xiao Feng redesignated as non-executive director on
11 March 2014.

(iii) Mr. Gao Chengming appointed on 4 March 2015.

(iv)  Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny appointed on 17 March 2015.

(V) Mr. Wong Sin Lai, formerly named as Mr. Wong Tam Yee,
resigned on 4 October 2013.

(vi)  Mr. Law Tze Lun appointed on 12 December 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there was
no arrangement under which a director or chief executive officer
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

For both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office.

The number of the directors and chief executive officer fell within
the following bands:

13. EERTHARZM S (&)

BEE

) RFEEREN-_Z-—MFRATNHABHEST

B —B-RAA BREEEEZERT

BRAAE,

i) BEELZIHR-_ZT-—NF=A+—HHATAE

FHITEF-

iy BHBELEN-_ZFT—HAF=ANAEZT-

vy ZWEEENR-_Z-—AF=A+LtBEEZR

£

v IFESREABEIXRBEREIN_Z

F+AmABHE-

==

Vi) BFHREER-_T—=F+-_A+-HEZ

£

REE-_ZE—NER-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—
HIEFE SMEZESRTRAHNESRRZ R

REAMEZ 28k

BE_Z-—NFER-_TE—=F+_-A=+—H
tFE AEEHERERINMESERSMA

ANEE 7 RE SRR AHE -

EERITRAHZMEHERWT

Number of directors and CEO

EERTHRERAH
2014 2013
—E—mF ==
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 1,000,000/ 7T 9 7
HK$1,000,001 or above 1,000,001 T & A - 2 1
11 8
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AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 14. SqREBAESMERESHF AL

AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included one executive director
(20183: one) whose emoluments were reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the remaining four
individuals (2013: four) were as follows:

(a)

EfNBEEHEAL

AEEFALNERHFALH B —
B(ZE—ZF:—R)ATES HH
EOREAMBHRERMEISAZ2IN 2D
R RO AL (ZT— =4
mE)ZMemT

2014 2013
—EF-mF ===

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Salaries and other short-term FehEMEHESRER
employee benefits 4,139 2,747
Contribution to pension scheme BRIRSFTEIME R 35 21
4,174 2,768

The emoluments of the four (2013: four) individuals ,
included four individuals (2013: four) of senior management,
with the highest emoluments are within the following band:

mME(ZF—MOFE - mMB)RaHAL
(BHENE (ZE2—=F 08) 5 RER
AB)zBe BRI :

Number of individuals

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 51,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 or above 1,000,001 7T A

A
2014 2013
—E—mF ==
1 4
3 —
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 14. S BB AEMEREEHF AT
AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management of the Company (b) AATZEREERAER

The emoluments of the senior management of the Company ARREBREBAEZHMESERNMAT :
are within the following band:

Number of individuals

AR
2014 2013
—Z—MF —T—=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007% 7T 1 4
HK$1,000,001 or above 1,000,001 7T A £ 3 -
During the year, no bonus was paid to the five highest paid FAN BEOAEBERUERFTALTE
individuals of the Group (2013: Nil). No emoluments were REL(ZE—=F &) ASEHE
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals MAf&SHATZ NS ERMAR
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as a SR REABEBRAE(ZE—=F:
compensation for loss of office (2013: Nil). ;3
15. DIVIDEND 15. R E
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of ARBEETEBENEE_T—OEE=Z
a dividend in respect of both years ended 31 December 2014 and —ZF+ A=+t BIMEFEZRE-

2013.

| 30 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

16. EREE

AR FVEA A 2 08 A B W18 T 12
oI E

2014 2013
—Z-mF —E—=F
Loss HK$’000 HK$'000
BB FERT T
Loss for the purpose of basic and FTEERER RS B ER
diluted loss per share KA EE (112,941) (117,881)
2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E-=F
Number of shares ’000 ’000
R EE TR TFhx
(restated)
(ge=51)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 71 B & A F AN 2 855 B 1B
for the purpose of basic and A2 SR T8
diluted loss per share 1,356,501 743,125

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been adjusted for the effects of both rights issue and
placing completed on 21 February 2014, 15 August 2014 and 22
September 2014 respectively (2013: adjusted for the effects of
both placing and rights issue completed on 28 June 2013 and 3
September 2013 respectively). The rights issue has been reflected
retrospectively by restating the opening weighted average number
of ordinary shares at 1 January 2013.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Company'’s outstanding share options and warrants were not
included in the calculation of diluted loss per share because the
effects of the Company’s outstanding share options and warrants
were anti-dilutive.

HE_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLFE &
EREAEBERRA 2T ARMEFLSHE
MOR=_E—NF-_A=+—H -=ZZF—@
FNATHBER=ZZ—MOFALA=-F+ZBEX
ZHEBRREE ZHEBELAR(ZE—=F:
RPN —_TE—=F AT N\NBR=ZT—=
FNAZBENZRERBERZFZEELS
B) RZE—=F—A—BzZFyZ@EBKN
BEHEEKES NEPRBRERZFE-

oH|

HE_ZT-—NEN_T—=F+-_A=+—H
LEFE ARARRZ HARITEERERRE
EEARBESE QGTESREEEERT
SRR A2 M AR T AR AE R R R
fER -

BIREESARAT 201455 | 3|
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ - BERRE
The Group KE
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvement fixtures  equipment  Computer vehicles Yacht Total
HEXE HAREKE BAZRE BE RE iz &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

At cost BHA

At 1 January 2013 RZE-—=F—-F—H 3,343 2,061 301 483 1,780 - 7,958
Additions £ 205 74 173 200 3783 - 4,435
Acqisition from subsidiaries = NGIL G - - - - - 24,500 24,500

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R=Z—=%

+-A=+-8k

—T-ME-A-A 3,548 2125 474 683 5563 24,500 36,893
Additions 5 295 159 2 47 2,162 - 2,685
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - (24,500) (24,500)
Written off ik (3,597) - - - - - (3,597)
At 31 December 2014 AT

—A=t+-A8 246 2,284 496 730 7,725 - 11,481

Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=F-A-H 733 1,020 206 452 445 - 2,856
Charge for the year FRXH 1,139 178 74 60 603 817 2,871

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZT—=%

+ZA=+-BR

—Z-mE-A-A 1,872 1,198 280 512 1,048 817 5,727
Charge for the year FAZH 1,254 258 68 125 1,322 1,633 4,660
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARRHE - - - - - (2,450) (2,450)
Witten off ki (3,072 - - - - - (3,072)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-F

+=A=1+-8 54 1,456 348 637 2,370 - 4,865
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2014 RZB-OF

+ZB=1-8 192 828 148 93 5,355 - 6,616
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=F

+=A=+-8 1,676 927 194 171 4515 23683 31,166
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ -BERZE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company N |
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvement fixtures  equipment Computer vehicles Total
HE#E GRREE BLERE B AE A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THT FET FET

At cost B
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%—f—H 3,343 2,051 301 483 1,780 7,958
Additions b 205 74 173 200 3,783 4,435
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 ~ R-ZT—=4%

+ZA=+-RAK

—E-mE-A—H 3,548 2,125 474 683 5,563 12,393
Additions %5 295 159 22 47 2,162 2,685
Written off s (3,597 - - - - (3,597)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—IF

+-A=1+—-8 246 2,284 496 730 7,725 11,481
Accumulated depreciation REHE
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—f—H 733 1,020 206 452 445 2,856
Charge for the year FAZH 1,139 178 74 60 603 2,054
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZZ—=F

+ZA=+-HK

—T-mF—-A—H 1,872 1,198 280 512 1,048 4910
Charge for the year FAZH 1,254 258 68 125 1,322 3,027
Written off bk (8,072 - - - - (3,072)
At 31 December 2014 AZZ—mF

+-A=1+—-H 54 1,456 348 637 2,370 4,865
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2014 R-B-IF

+-A=1+-H 192 828 148 93 5,355 6,616
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F

+-A=+—-H 1,676 927 194 171 4515 7,483
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tRE IS IRERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE
18. OTHER TANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Hth G &EE
HK$'000
FHT
The Group and the Company AEBRAEAT
Cost and carrying amount e v
At 31 December 2014 R-ZF-MF+-A=+—H 21,730
The amount represents the aggregate cost of art work, diamond CHEASEMHFEN R BAREBEANIEZ
and diamond ring held by the Group. In the opinion of the directors KB -ARNREERE K2EEXEME
of the Company, after referencing to professional valuation reports, WER EMBREEZFHGEBEEZELEER
the residual value of the other tangible assets worth at least its EREFRPRzEDSRE-
carrying amount at the end of reporting period.
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RMIE AR 2R
2014 2013
—2—mF —F=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FH&T
The Company NN
Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMIRE LA - _
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE MR Y B 2 RIFRIA 310,141 120,559
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect B WE @Enﬁ%’\ DHER
of advances to subsidiaries AR (30,351) (13,457)
279,790 107,102
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B BB 2 RI3RIR 21,156 1,161
The movement of provision for impairment loss on amounts due BB AR REZ REBEREZESHOT
from subsidiaries is as follows:
2014 2013
—Z—MmF —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FH&T
At the beginning of the year REL 13,457 7,500
Impairment loss recognised BERERREEIE 16,894 5,957
30,351 18,457
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19.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the directors of
the Company assessed the recoverable amounts of the amounts
due from subsidiaries after considering profitability, cash flow
position, financial position, forecast business development and
future prospects of the subsidiaries. Based on this assessment the
carrying amounts of amounts due from subsidiaries are reduced
to their recoverable amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to be generated from
the respective subsidiaries.

The amount(s) due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company will not demand/(call) for

19. AB AR 2 &

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR Mt
—EFE+=A=+—BILFE

( i} )

BHE_T--NWFR-T-—=F+_"H=+—H
IFFE ARARERFHEYRHBRARZIELZ
TH&Z@%%E'Eqﬂ%J%I%@TEE%ﬁMT%An
2 B A g i/mEJL‘in/R Eﬁ%#ﬁ?ﬁ/ﬂ”%
W?")E)SUEX% S RBEF AR BKHE

AR RE SR = AT WOl &5 - T)
%Fﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ#%AETEEEZ%@KL%@?R%ZE
FHimEE

FEY () BB A R RIEAEER - 28 RE
BEERAA AAREERR ARATER
ERHREF—FRER CREH) EE &

repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period and WAREIER
are therefore considered as non-current.
Particulars of the Group’s subsidiary as at 31 December 2014 are R-ZE—NE+_A=+—8B AEEZHB
as follows: ANEIFEIAT -
Proportion of nominal value
of paid-up capital and
Place of incorporation Fully paid proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ANAMEHERAHEE
Wi 2 B B 48 A R BHRRE W R R R TEXEK
Directly Indirectly
E# %
National Investments Fund (HK)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holdings
Limited (‘NIF (HK)")
EREARREESERAR  BE EER 187 REZR
(I&#EE])
National China Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holdings
Limited (‘National China”)
BEREREERRA B EER 187 REZR
(TEI g E])
Top Flame Investments Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary USDS$1 100% - Investment holdings
(“Top Flame”)
Top Flame Investments Limited =~ £BEZES Lk 1% REER
([Top Flame |)
Shine Full Capital Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USDS$1 100% - Investment holdings
(“Shine Full’)
Shine Full Capital Limited RBRLES EER b REZR
(Shine Full])
makaxesRano4ER |35



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiary as at 31 December 2014 are

as follows: (Continued)

19. RMB AR zEm= (&)

i
/N

Proportion of nominal value
of paid-up capital and

Z—ME+—A=+—H F~EBZHE
AlFEBAT : (&)

Place of incorporation Fully paid proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARRFFARRAEE
WED AR AL AL S i B R BHRRE HBI R R EAE L B TEER
Directly Indirectly
=84 &

Victory Eternal Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
(*Victory Eternal”)

Victory Eternal Limited KBRS LR Ep REER
([ Victory Eternal |)

Chance Luck Holdings Limited ~ British Virgins Islands Ordinary USDS$1 100% - Investment holdings
(“Chance Luck”)

Chance Luck Holdings Limited ~ EEBREZEE Lk E REER
([Chance Luck ] )

Top Onward Development British Virgins Islands Ordinary USDS$1 100% - Investment holdings
Limited (“Top Onward”)

Top Onward Development KERUES Lk ES REER
Limited ([ Top Onward | )

Gold Full Corporate British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
Development Limited
(‘Gold Full")

Gold Full Corporate KBRS LR Ep 100% - REER
Development Limited ([ Gold
Full])

Delight Hope Investments British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
Limited (“Delight Hope”)

Delight Hope Investments KERUES LER 1%L REER

Limited ( [ Delight Hope |)
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A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-—ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RIBE R A 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the Group’s subsidiary as at 31 December 2014 are REZFE—WOF+_A=1+—H xEBZHEB
as follows: (Continued) ANREIFBOT: (&)

Proportion of nominal value
of paid-up capital and

Place of incorporation Fully paid proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARRFBARRAEE
WEL= LR AR AL SISk B R 13 % 5 BHRRE IR R ERE LS TEER
Directly Indirectly
¢4 &

Up Wonderful Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
(“Up Wonderful’)

Up Wonderful Limited KBRS LR Ep REER
(TUp Wonderful | )

Luxwealth Development Limited ~ British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
(‘Luxwealth”)

Luxwealth Development Limited ~ £ BE 5 S Lk E REER
(Luxwealth |)

Essence Sharp Holdings Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary USDS$1 100% - Investment holdings
(“Essence Sharp”)

Essence Sharp Holdings Limited £ BE 5 5 LTk E3 REER
([Essence Sharp |)

Massive Shine Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
(‘Massive Shine”)

Massive Shine Limited KBRS @k E REER
(Massive Shine | )

Gold Intelligent Investment British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
Development Limited
(‘Gold Intelligent”)

Gold Intelligent Investment EBETHS gl 1E7L BEZR
Development Limited
([ Gold Intelligent |)

Vast Spirit Investment Holding British Virgins Islands Ordinary USD$1 100% - Investment holdings
Limited (“Vast Spirit")

Vast Spirit Investment Holding R EBRE S LTk ES REER
Limited ([ Vast Spirit | )
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. A& AR 2R

Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows:

AEBERBERR ZERFABOT

2014 2013
—ZT-mF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Cost of investment in associates /N s - J BN
- Unlisted -3k 23 23
Share of post-acquisition loss and other FEAE W B 12 B 48 R Eofth 2 T Wi s
comprehensive income, net of dividends ke WA
received
— Unlisted (Note (ij)) —3E BT (HeEm) (23) (23)
Amount due from an associate (Note (j)) JE M B s N R SRIE (BT aE3)
- Unlisted —3EET 35,977 5,977
Less: share of post-acquisition loss and other ~ Jit - FE{5 Uk B& 14 518 &
comprehensive income, net of dividends Hiv2mEa IR WRE
received
— Unlisted (Note (i) and (i) —3E LT (B aF )R (i) (7,585) (1,523)
28,392 4,454
Impairment loss on amount due from JE Ui B & R R RUB 2 R B & 1B
an associate (Note (iv)) (Kiativ) (4,454) (4,454)
23,938 -
23,938 -
Notes: Biaz -
0] The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest- () FEWHENRREAERR RERERTE

free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of B ANTERRE ARRTERE
the directors of the Company, the Company will not demand REAGR A — ENEREE SO EEIER
repayment within one year from the end of reporting period and & o

are therefore considered as non-current.
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AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZFT—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

On 14 November 2011, Chance Luck, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into an agreement with Rui
Shing Holdings Limited, and Long Holdings Limited to establish
Tumas Holdings Limited (“Tumas Holdings”), incorporated
under the laws of British Virgin Islands. The principal activities
of Tumas Holdings and its subsidiaries are development and
manufacturing of yacht. The investment cost amounted to
approximately HK$23,000 and the Group’s share of loss of
an associate for the year 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$23,000.

In the opinion of the directors, the amount due from an associate
form part of the Group’s net investment and the Group’s share
the excess part of loss of an associate for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1,007,000.

On 17 April 2014, Essence Sharp, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has established Medisun Holdings (Overseas)
Limited (“Medisun Holdings”), incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands. The principal activities of Medisun Holdings
and its subsidiaries are development of bio-pharmaceutical and
regenerative medicine system and products. The investment
cost amount to approximately HK$800 and the Group’s share of
loss of associate for the year 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$6,062,000.

The carrying amount of amount due from an associate is
reduced to its recoverable amount which is determined by
reference to the estimation of future cash flow expected to be
generated from the associate.

20. REtE QT 2R (&)

Hrat - (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

RZZT——F+—A+0B AEEZZE
Fff B /A &) Chance Luck&ZRui Shing Holdings
Limited 52 Long Holdings Limited&] 37 17 &% *
BA X 32 Tumas Holdings Limited ([ Tumas
Holdings | * 1R #& 25 & fe Z B & /A i K
37) ° Tumas Holdings R KB ARl 2 EFE 2
T4 7 B B % B 35 R o 48 & K AN 493223,000
BT BHEZZT——F+ZA=1T—HILF
[E A5 B G Bt i R B 2 518 4) /23,0007

TG e

EER A BE_T—=F+-_A=+—8
IEFE ERBEARRESAEEFRE
2 — 20 MAE BRI E QR BB 2B
i #B 15 %9 A1,007,00078 7T

RZZE—NFOA++EH ANEEZ2ENH
J& A A]Essence Sharpfk 37 Medisun Holdings
(Overseas) Limited ( [ Medisun Holdings | * &
BREE XS EEFMAL) - Medisun
Holdings R B ARz E EXK AREE
Y BIEE N A BB R R EE o B A KY
BB T HE T —NFE+_A=+—
HIEFEASEREBEARZEBIENA
6,062,000/ JT °

JRE W B 2 R ROE 2 BR T 2 FEORY D = L AT R
C&%E  H2RBPZHE RBELE ZARK
ReRnB At mETE -
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ERE TR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ —ZT—NE+_-_A=+—HILtFE

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. NIt ERNEl 2w (&)

(CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s associates which are held indirectly by the R-E—NFEER=—ZT—=F+-F=+—HH

Company at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: AR EERE ﬁ Z AEEBE AR ZFBN

N
Proportion of
Principal Class of nominal value Proportion
Name of Form of Place of Fully paid place of shares of issued share of voting  Principal
associate entity incorporation share capital operation held capital held power held  activity
e RT i
BENTER ERKA ZEMR AL Lt B ERERA TEEENY FEROERN REAEERAH FRLA  TEER
Tumas Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands - US$10,000 HongKong ~ Ordinary 30% 30% (Note () Investment
holdings
Tumas Holdings Az A ERETHS 10,000% 7T 0 LB 30%  30% (MHp) RERR
Medisun Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands  US$50,000 Hong Kong Ordinary 30% 30% (Note (i) Investment
holdings
Medisun Holdings &A%z EERUES 50,000% 7T ) el 30% - 30% (M) REEK

Notes: Hiaz -

i) The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of Tumas () 7N & B 5 B Tumas HoIdingsZSO%E BT
Holdings. The directors of the Company consider that the Group A -RARAEEFRA A& B HTumas
does have significant influence over Tumas Holdings and it is HoIdingsEEK%% 77 I L E S BAR
therefore classified as an associate of the Group. SEZE = QT

(i) The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of Medisun (i) 7% E ¥ A Medisun Holdings Z 30% 2 3 17
Holdings. The directors of the Company consider that the Group R RAREFRA A% B ¥ Medisun
does have significant influence over Medisun Holdings and it is Holdings & X %5 27 AEKESEAR
therefore classified as an associate of the Group. SEZEE QT

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s FRAAERSHLANT MBS EE S| M

associates is set out below. The summarised financial information To "X HMBEERBMERREBL N TR

below represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial BEEBMBHRELEANGE Y UBRRATS

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. H o
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ERE R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtE RN T 2= (1E)
(CONTINUED)
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method FiAEZEME AR ARG ET ALLRE
in these consolidated financial statements. B SRR o
Tumas Holdings
Year Year
2014 2013
—2-mE =F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&T
Current assets REEE 9,610 10,100
Non-current assets FEREEE 1,412 1,656
Current liabilities REBE (2,888) (2,545)
Non-current liabilities FRBBEE (12,000) (12,000)
Revenue e 223 -
Loss from continuing operations BEBREEBER (709) (5,360)
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations £ 4% [F 48 & ¥ 784 1512 &5 18 - -
Loss for the year FREE (709) (5,360)
Loss attributable to the Group AEEFENEE - (1,608)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREM2E (BE) R
for the year (99) 2,004
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEBEEGHMEE
attributable to the Group (E518) W= - 601

piRaReaRAT 01455 |4
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—Z

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

—mOFE+-A=+—BILFE

20. B

EREBA RS
B AR EESESHE:

DA ZER

JSER AN

ZRWR A

B SRR N AT RERR 10

Tumas Holdings

Year Year
2014 2013
—Z-F —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
Net liabilities attributable to the owners of ZHE N RER AEEFEE
the associate - (5,075)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest ~ ZN %2 [E 572 Tumas Holdings 2
in Tumas Holdings AR LB 30% 30%
Share of post-acquisition loss and other FEME YRR e R a2 s
comprehensive income, net of dividends B B WA S
received - (1,523)
Amount due from an associate JE Uk Bt 4% ) B R B = 5,977
Impairment loss on amount due from FEULHE & A A IEZ/JEUEJES B
an associate - (4,454)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Tumas Holdings

N & [@] 72 Tumas Holdings.Z
Hm s RESHE
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

20. REtE QT 2R (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

BB E R R R S M ISR A PR R
Alz s 2 FRE SR 2 R

N

Medisun Holdings

Year

2014
—E-F
HK$’000
FHERT

Year
2013

HK$’000
THETT

Current assets MBEE 25,484 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 185,290 -
Current liabilities PEIR=NET = -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (265,191) -
Revenue & 52 -
Loss from continuing operations FBCE RS (20,208) -
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations B 4% [F & & £ K& E18 - -
Loss for the year FANEE (20,208) -
Loss attributable to the Group AEEEEEER (6,062) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year FARAEMEMEEE (82,416) -
Other comprehensive loss attributable to REEEEEMEEES

the Group

=
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A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZFT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtE DT oS (1E)
(CONTINUED)
Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to the LS E R B RS M HRR ATERR
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the BE ARz Em  RA SRR

consolidated financial statements:

Medisun Holdings

Year Year
2014 2013
—Z-F —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T
Net liabilities attributable to the owners of ZEENREAEAEBEFAE
the associate (54,417) -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7~ 5= [8 7 Medisun Holdings 2
in Medisun Holdings WA R ) 30% -
Share of post-acquisition loss and R EE R 2 E e
other comprehensive income, net of R B AR B
dividends received (16,325) -
Amount due from an associate JFE UL H & A B FIR 30,000 -
Others HAp 10,263 -
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7K 5= B 7 Medisun Holdings 2
Medisun Holdings [ ik 23,938 -
Unrecognised share of losses of an associate AERZEEBHEATBE
Year Year
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T
The unrecognised share of loss of REERZ LB E R R FRER
an associate for the year (213) -
Year Year
2014 2013
—2—mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cumulative share of loss of an associate RET (RS R REE (1,523) (1,523)
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A ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21. It ESREE
ASSETS
2014 2013
—EF-mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
The Group &
Unlisted securities ELEMES
— debt securities —BEBEF 13,444 -
— equity securities — AR AT 194,864 41,892
208,308 41,892
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENINTA:
Non-current assets EMBEE 194,864 41,892
Current assets MENVEE 13,444 -
208,308 41,892
2014 2013
—Z-mF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
The Company AAT
Unlisted securities I ETRES
— debt securities —EBFES 13,444 -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENITA:
Current assets RBEE 13,444 -

piaEegRAT 01458 145
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AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE-_ZT—WF+_A=+—HILFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

21. AL ESMEE (&)

The following is a list of AFS financial assets as at 31 December

2014 and 2013:

UWTER-_ZE—NER_FT—=F+_H
=+ HzAHHESREESRX:

Proportion Net assets
share capital  attributable to Fair value Fair value
owned asat the Group as at as at asat
31 December 31 December Cost of 31 December 31 December
Name of equity/debt securities 2014 2014 investment 2014 2013
RZB-IE RIB-OF
TEEET=F T=EEr=[E R=B-mE HZT-—=F
ke AEEERZ +=A=t+-B +=ZA=t-H
BE/EHES 4B BRABS BERE RERA ZARERE ZRAEE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THERT FET
Equity securities issued by: DT AR BITZRAES
- HEC Capital Limited (‘HEC") (Note (i) —HEC Capital Limited
(THEC ) (Htzta)) 0.89 74,719 49,283 56,140 41,892
- Upperclass Developments Limited —Upperclass Developments Limited
(“Upperclass’) (Note (i) ([Upperclass |) (#7:£(i)) 30 34,651 - - -
~ Freeman Corporation Limited -REZRBERAA
(‘Freeman’) (Note (iv)) (TRE)) (Wizh) 1.80 66,752 59,850 50,154 -
- Smart Role Limited (“Smart Role”) (Note v)) —Smart Role Limited
([SmartRole]) (A1) 8 46,840 59,680 59,503 -
- Kingswood Shine Limited -8RaRAR ([99R])
(“Kingswood”) (Note () (Htzt(n) 50 37,150 40,000 29,067 -
Debt securities issued by: DT ARBITZERES:
— Premium Castle Limited (‘Premium Castle”) — Premium Castle Limited
(Note (Vi) ([Premium Castle |)
(Wrazwi) N/A 138 NATER 12,056 13,444 -
208,308 41,892
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AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZFT—NWFE+-_A=+—HILLFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i)

The unlisted equity securities and unlisted debt securities are
measured at fair value and are classified as Level 3 fair value
measurement. The fair value of unlisted equity securities is
estimated by applying price-to-book ratios for similar listed
companies and adjusted to reflect the specific circumstance of
the investments. The fair value of debt element of the unlisted
debt securities is calculated based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the required yield, which was determined with reference to the
credit rating of the issuers of the unlisted debt securities and the
maturity terms. The effective interest rate is 10.11% (2013: Nil).

HEC is an exempted company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability on 11 April 2012. It is principally engaged
in investment holding. After forming the HEC, there was a
capital reorganisation among HEC, Cordoba Homes Limited
(“Cordoba”) and Hennabun Capital Group Limited (‘HCG”) (“the
Reorganisation”). During the Reorganisation, the Group received
the same number of equity securities in HEC in exchange for
the equity securities in Cordoba and HCG. The Reorganisation
was completed on 30 April 2012. On that date, the Group
held 1.30% equity interest of HEC which directly and indirectly
owned 100% equity interest of Cordoba and HCG respectively.
No dividend was entitled to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$NIl).

Unlisted equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, such unlisted equity
securities are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

On 8 April 2013, Top Onward, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, has entered into agreement with Mr. Li, a shareholder of
Upperclass which incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands, in relation to the acquisition of 30% equity interest and
the transfer of contractual right to receive another receivable
owed by Upperclass. This resulted in an indirectly held of
approximately 16% equity interest in Hua Tong International
Leasing Co., Limited (“‘Hua Tong”), incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liability. The principal activities of
Hua Tong are leasing. The investment cost and other receivable
amount to HK$234 and approximately HK$40,800,000
respectively, and the transaction was completed on 30
December 2013. The Group is unable to exercise significant
influence over Upperclass and Hua Tong as they do not have the
power to appoint any of its director and do not participate in its
policy-making processes.

U

(i)

21. AL ESRMEE (&)

BEE

LR AESRLIEETEFREFRAAE
Bt 82X DB AEIMRAABENEIFL
MRABHFZ ARBEEREN EmRARZH
IR WIEHFAERURBRIEE 2 TS
Mo EMEBBSFEEBOZANEET
12 DA TE Bl 3R R BE IR 2 R 2RI 7 2 KTE TR
SREFE HERRHLEFE LHEES
HFBITAZEETA R FHMETE - BERF
RAE10% (ZE—=F:F) -

HECAR-ZE——FMA+—HEMRSH
EEMK I EREER AR -EFXEHNE
EER PN HECH ' HEC - KBREH
R A" ([F42]) KHennabun Capital Group
Limited ([HCG | ) #1TRRANE4H ([E4H]) -
REARE AEEESHERSE 2 HECHK
RFBEH UL I E RHCGZ IR AN B % - B4R
ER-_ZE——&mMA=1+H=x/K -RAA &
&£ B+ AHECZ1.30%M% & - THECH Bl &
B N A = R HCGZ 100% A% 1E - &
T NFE+_A=+—HLFE AEHE
EEERRE (ZT—=F T#8j)

FEETARAE AN A BRI 5 b I SR (E -
MaREARBEZGEFTHEEANKR BZHEMA
St AR R A AT - AN S 2HAR
BRABERE BB EERE -

R_E—=ZFMANB - AEBZE2EK
J& 2 &) Top OnwardE2 Upperclass (1R #% % &
BREEAEFEMAIZ AR BEEFEE
I — 1D ek - WA A B UK Upperclass 2
30%% 1 } 2 3% W BX Upperclass#& K < 5 —
BRRFBEZEHEN - WEBREERE
EREEEEEARAR ([EB] - RPEA
RAMBEFEMA L 2 BREEAT) £916%
fRiE - EB s FEEBAEE - IREXNARRHE
1t JIE W 5138 5 Bl 2347 TT K 4940,800,000
B MRBER=ZFE—=F+=-A=+H
SERX  F A Upperclass & % i 1 & T H AT
fAES MESELRKARE AEEEX
¥ Upperclass R ZEBITFEE AT E ]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ERE TR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZEZZT—WNFE+-_A=+—HIFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(V)

(Vi)

On 24 September 2014, Up Wonderful, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Freeman (formerly known as Advance Best Limited) which
incorporated under laws of Cayman Islands with limited liability,
in relation to the subscription of 21,000,000 shares which
represent 1.80% equity interest of Freeman. No dividend was
entitled to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

On 24 September 2014, Massive Shine, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with Trillion
Cheer Toprich Limited (“Trillion Cheer”), a shareholder of Smart
Role which incorporated under the laws of British Virgin Islands
with limited liability. This result in an indirectly held in 8% equity
interest of 2 & (2 /) Z# A R 2 7 (‘Hancheng Bazhong”),
incorporated under the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability. The principal activities of Hancheng Bazhong are holding
of the Forest Rights Certificates. The investment cost amount
to approximately HK$59,680,000, and the transaction was
completed on 24 September 2014.

On 5 September 2014, Luxwealth Development, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement
with Uprite Limited (“Uprite”), a shareholder of Kingswood
which incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 25 July
2014, in relation to the acquisition of 50% equity interest of a
yacht and marine facilities amount to HK$40,000,000, and the
transaction was completed on 5 September 2014. The Group is
unable to exercise significant influence over Kingswood as they
do not have the power to appoint any of its director and do not
participate in its policy-making processes.

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of Kingswood. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$10,933,000 was recognised for the year
as the management expected that the recoverable amount
generated from the underlying assets would be less than
previously expected. The recoverable amount of Kingswood
has been determined by reference to the transaction prices, or
valuation multiples implicit in the transactions prices, of identical
or similar assets on the market. The discount for the useful life
and condition of the underlying assets was ranged from 10% to
20% (2013: Nil).
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Hrat - (&)

(v)

(vi)

R-ZZ—NF N A=+MH - Up Wonderful
(AEEZz2EHBAR) BERE (AIEEZE
ERAR BIREFASHEAREMERIZ
ERARD Y — O hE RAEERER
#21,000,0008 & 0 - HHE R R E 21.80%
RiE-BE_T—NFER-_T—=F+=-A
=+—HIEFE AEEEEERRE -

RZE—NFNLAZTMB AEEZE2E
Bff B A AlMassive ShineE2Smart Role (18 #
RERZHSAETMA I BEREFAFR)
[i% % Trillion Cheer Toprich Limited ( [Trillion
Cheer | ) i1 — D1k - L R E BB E
i (B BEMERAE (DEHES] R
i AREMBFMAZ2BREEAT])
Z8%ARHE o M 2 = EXE AR NE
75 o B A4 559,680,000/ MR SE
RZE—NFAAZ+EHEEK

R-ZE—NFEAARA AEBZ2EKH B
A 7] Luxwealth Development£2 $557 (7 — &
—ELtA-+REAERBSEMRIZE
R A &]) 2 A& B Uprite Limited ([Uprite | ) T
N — 1 NA RS — e oK £
%6 .2 50% AR 4 + ¥ K & #E £40,000,000/%
T MRSGER-_E—NENARATK-
HREMEEZTHIMES NESHEE
RRBIR AEEEEHORITEEATE
H o

TR REBEEFHHMZATRESEE - HRE
T 2 18 HAFE R & E 2 m] Uk 01 < B e D A S Al
T8 HR - iR F ) E SRR 1B /E5 18 4910,933,000
BT Pmz A RESE 2B MS AR
RIEPEEZR P ERKRBERSIBH2E
BEEHETE HEEEZ IERAFHIKR
WENT10%E20% (ZE—=F &) -



For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii

On 14 October 2010, the Group subscribed a convertible
note issued by Premium Castle (“Premium Castle CN”) with
a principal amount of HK$27,000,000 with interest at 2% per
annum with maturity of three years from the date of subscription.
Full conversion of the Premium Castle CN will result in
conversion into 19.59% of ordinary shares of the issued share
capital of Premium Castle as to the conversion date. Premium
Castle and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment
holding, securities brokerage and financial advisory.

The fair value at initial recognition of the debt element of
the Premium Castle CN and the conversion option element
of the Premium Castle CN, amounting to approximately
HK$25,675,000 and HK$1,325,000 respectively, are
measured in accordance with HKAS 39. Premium Castle CN
was expired on 13 October 2013 and the outstanding debt
element of approximately HK$18,208,000 was reclassified to
other receivable (‘Loan Receivable”) and the Loan Receivable
incurred an interest at 2% per annum. The Loan Receivable
was reclassified from other receivable to debt element of AFS
financial assets on 25 February 2014. Please refer to Note 24 for
details.

As the maturity date of Premium Castle CN fell on 13 October
2013, Premium Castle and the Group have agreed to settle
the Loan Receivable by entering into a new subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) on 24 December 2013
and subscribed a new convertible note issued by Premium
Castle (“New Premium Castle CN”) with principal amount
of HK$18,600,000, which comprise principle amount and
outstanding interest of HK$17,000,000 and approximately
HK$1,600,000 respectively from the outstanding Premium
Castle CN. The completion of the subscription took place on 25
February 2014. Details of the Subscription Agreement were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated on 24 December
2013.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

21. At

Wizt -

(vi)

R I R Mt
—HFE+=A=+—BLFE

HESHMEE (8)

(%)

R-ZE—ZFF+A+MNBE - AEBRER
Premium CastleFfr 2 17 48 < 58 /427,000,000
B IT 2 AT IR ZE 4R ([ Premium CastleR] #2f%
ZR|) RFEMREFE - RREAHRE
5 = F & i o & 2 2 Premium Castled] &
J% 22 4% 1% 38 B8 2 A Premium Castlei? 8 #
HHE B2 TR AN 19.59% % A% o Premlum
Castle R EMBAREZRFREZR B
1 ae R B TS EEH o

Premium Castlef] #2 & Z i 2 & 7% 010 &
Premium Castle 7] #2 & = & 2 R f& # 25 10
I HERE 2 AR EED B4 525,675,000
77T 51,325,000/ 7T © HiRIEE B2 ER
3957 5t & ° Premium Castlef] # iR Z &
R-_E—Z=F+A+=HIH KEEEH
*M‘imszosooo,%yzaéssﬁ A AR R H A FE

Wk ([EKER]) - mERE R IEFEF|
OB B -N_E—MF_A=-+HA JE
WERAHMEYREEN D EAAIHEE
SRMEEZERIMG -FEIEHE2HM 24 -

M 7 Premium Castlef] # i Z & B R

— =%+ A+=835" #Premium Castle
HAEBRENR-_Z—=F+=-A=+m
Bel ¥ RERSE ([REHE])  £BE
W & 3K - I R BEPremium Castleff 3 17 K &
A £18,600,00078 70 2 37 Al A =4 (57
Premium CastleP] 28 F#& 1) - BB A5
B3 K & & #2 Premium Castleﬂ}ﬁﬁﬁgj{ﬂ?
2 KN4 %817,000,000/%8 7T & & & & F 8
1,600,000%%7E°EEH%$IEEA =— @E H
Zt+RBEK -REBEABRNAR
MAE-_T—=F+_-A= "i—EEIZ”“i
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=E—Z—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii

(il

(Continued)

Initial recognition of the debt element of the New Premium
Castle CN and the conversion options element of the New
Premium Castle CN in accordance with HKAS 39, amounting to
approximately HK$12,056,000 and HK$6,224,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the principal amount of the New
Premium Castle CN is HK$18,600,000 (2013: Nil). As at 31
December 2013, the Premium Castle CN was reclassified to
other receivable and the cumulative loss on Premium Castle CN
previously recognised in AFS financial assets equity reserve was
reclassified to profit or loss of approximately HK$1,209,000.
There was no disposal or redemption during both years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013. No dividend was entitled to the
Group during both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

On 17 and 18 April 2013, the Group subscribed a convertible
note issued by Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(“Celebrate CN”) with principal amounts of HK$15,000,000
and HK$10,000,000 respectively. The Celebrate CN is with
zero coupon interest and maturity of six years from the date of
subscription.

The fair value at initial recognition of the debt element of the
Celebrate CN and conversion option element of the Celebrate
CN, amounting to approximately HK$24,988,000 and
HK$12,000 respectively, are measured in accordance with
HKAS 39.

On 28 August 2013, the Company disposed the Celebrate
CN at a consideration of HK$10,000,000. The difference was
recognised as impairment loss in AFS financial assets.
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(vi)

(viil

(%)

BRIBEB B ERIFE30R I LR
Premium CastleP] # i& 4% 2 & 15 30 15 &3
Premium Castlef] # A% 4% 2 2R #E 2B 10 75
7114912,056,0007% 7T 56,224,000/ JT ©

R-ZFE—MNE+=-F=+—H " #HPremium
Castlef] #2 i% Z & 2 78 & ¥ 418,600,000/
T(ZE—=F &) R_FT—=F
+ = A=+ —H ' Premium Castler] # j§ Z
BB E 5 A H M YGEIE - M Premium
CastleA| R ZIE A AR AIHEESREE
T 25 1 R 2 R FTE 18 491,209,000/ 7T
EEFMOEEBERR RNEBEE_T—NFR
= +-_A=t+—HIMAFEHE
ETHESER REBEE_T—NFR=-F
—=F+-_A=+—HLREFE ~£H
HEREERRS -

RZZB-—=FOA+EARtNB F&H
REHEMER (ZR)BARARFETA
© %8 5 7l /215,000,000 7T % 10,000,000/
T AR (ERARERE]) -8
AHBRREDTRE WA R R RN
FRIH-

Bim A BERRIE 2 B KBRS
R D N TR 2 R EED
7l 49 7324,988,000/8 7T % 12,0008 7T T3 1R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21, AIHHEEHMEE (&)
ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The following is the analysis of fair value change of AFS financial LTABE-ZNFEFER=ZE—=F+=A
assets for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013: —t+—HIEFEZAHEESHEEZARE
BEE DT

Change in fair value
during the year ended
RBETIHHBHILEFEZ

AREERE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—F-QmF —F=F
TSEHEr=E +=—A=+—H
Name of unlisted equity/debt securities HK$’000 HK$'000
FETRE EEXFSFERE FHExT FHET
e
Unlisted equity securities issued by: AT RRIBEITZIFLEMRARZS
—HEC —HEC 14,248 (521)
- Freeman -RE (9,696) -
— Smart Role —Smart Role (177) -
Unlisted debt securities issued by: AT RARIBITZIELMERES
— Premium Castle —Premium Castle 472 2,335
— Celebrate ] - (8,611)

22. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 22 AREBAS ZHRRKRE
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT
The Group and the Company AEERAAT
Conversion options embedded AR RN E 2 B E
in convertible notes 2,453 -

ARiE AR e ERAR 201455 | DI

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZT— W&+ _A=+—HILFE

22. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 22 TEREBRNSZBRKRE (&)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion options element of the convertible notes subscribed
by the Group and are measured at fair value using the binomial
option pricing model at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period. The debt element of the convertible notes is
classified as AFS financial assets.

The Group subscribed Celebrate CN during the year ended 31
December 2013 and amount of approximately HK$12,000 was
recognised as conversion option embedded in convertible note
which was measured at fair value at initial recognition.

The Group disposed Celebrate CN on 28 August 2013 and the
carrying amount of the conversion option embedded in Celebrate
CN was approximately HK$70,000 at that date.

As explained in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group subscribed New Premium Castle CN during the
year ended 31 December 2014 and amount of approximately
HK$6,224,000 was recognised as conversion option embedded
in convertible note which was measured at fair value at initial
recognition. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of
conversion option in New Premium Castle CN was approximately
HK$2,453,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. REEREAAEEIEZEH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS &E
The Group and the Company KEBRAEAT
2014 2013
—F-mE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Held-for-trading: BHIEEE:
Equity securities, at fair value BAFES - RANEE
— listed in Hong Kong —REBLEM 120,112 58,318
Debt securities, at fair value BEBREH BHAAEE
— listed in Singapore —RET N - 10,150
Commodities futures contracts, at fair value AmiiEAH RAAER
— overseas — &5 - 32
120,112 68,500
The following is a list of the held-for-trading investments as at 31 UTNAEAR-_ZE—NF+_A=+—HZ#EEE
December 2014: BERBEYK:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong: REB LM 2BRAFES:
Net (liabilities)/
Place of assets
incorporation attributable
and kind of Number of Interest to the Cost of Fair Change in
Name of equity securities legal entity shares held held Company investment value fair value
KRE LS
TME LR (8f&)/
RAEESER EEERER FERAHE FisEs BEFE RERE MER DMEEED
(%) ’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tr TERT TER TER
Mascotte Holdings Limited Bermuda, 908,703,496 3.3789 HK$(1,404) 85,067 118,131 33,064
limited liability ordinary shares
company
SHEEEERDA BREE-BRAA 908,703,496 B (1,404)
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. People’s Republic 102,000 0.0022 RMBE6,917 1,562 1,981 419
of China, ordinary shares
limited liability
company
BBRITROERAR hEARARE- 102,000 AEH6917
BREFAR LRk

AmiRaRegRAT 01488 | D3
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

The following is a list of the held-for-trading investments as at 31
December 2013:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong:

Place of
incorporation
and kind of Number of Interest
Name of equity securities legal entity shares held held
BalllAE:E
BRAZEFEHE EEERER s RIAEIR Fris s

(%)

RESRRAABEIRZEH®
gE (&)
FEEREDE (&)

UTFRR=—F—=F+"H=+—BZ&F{EE
BRENK:

Mascotte Holdings Limited Bermuda, limited 200,000,000 1.4862
liability company  ordinary shares
SHEEEERLA BEE BRAE 200,000,000
LR

New Island Development Bermuda, limited 67,436,000 2.5302
Holdings Limited liability company  ordinary shares
TNERERERAT BRE-ERRA 674360000
gl
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REE L 2 RAE
Net (iabilties)/
assets
attributable
tothe Cost of Fair Changein
Company investment value fair value
NG
(8f&)/
EE%E REMKA ARBEE RABEED
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tr FET TAx TAT
HK$(9,078) 18,063 24,600 6,537
B #(9,078)
HK$12,732 55,298 33,718 (21,580)
512,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. REZREAABEIEZEH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Group and the Company (Continued) AEERAAT (&)
Debt securities listed in Singapore: RETINE L 2 BB ES
Place of Net assets
incorporation attributable
and kind of Number of Interest tothe Cost of Fair Changein
Name of debt securities legal entity bonds held held Company investment value fair value
BRI KATEL
EBEFERE EEE R ies-Eor = PR EERE REMKR AREE AREEEY
(%) '000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT FHL THL
Renhe Commercial Holdings Caymen Islands, 2,000,000 NA NA 11,158 10,150 (1,008)
Company Limited limited liability bonds
company
ANBEEREBR AR REHE BARAE 2,000,000 TERA TEm 11,158 10,150 (1,008)
&%
Commodities futures contracts — overseas: AmmiEELH— 8
Number of
contracts Notional value Fair value
Nature of commodities e BH%E ZEEE RAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
NSI/Silver NSl (i 1 787 32
A brief description of the business and financial information of RIE Lt ERAZTSETH M BHmE &
the above listed equity securities, based on their latest financial BN R BERDT :

statements, are as follows:

()  Mascotte Holdings Limited is principally engaged in loan () EBHEEEERAFANETERZTERR
financing, trading of investments, manufacturing and sale B KREEE B SRXLRZERBED
of accessories for photographic, electrical and multimedia Btz BERIEE  ARERE -

products and property investment.

The unaudited net profit (2013: loss) attributable to FEHMESEEERAAEE_Z—NOF
the owners of Mascotte Holdings Limited for the six NA=ZFTRERNBERZEE AEMLE
months ended 30 September 2014 was approximately BEZEN(ZE—=F:BEFH)
HK$17,876,000 (2013: approximately HK$124,415,000). 4 517,876,0008 L (Z T —=F: 4

124,415,000 7T ) °

B EESARAT 2014558 | D5
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE=_—Z

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. is principally engaged in
finance lease, assets management, banking and financial
advisory services in Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hong Kong.

The unaudited net profit attributable to the owners of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 31
December 2014 was approximately RMB30,459,000. No
share was held by the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2013.

New Island Development Holdings Limited is principally
engaged in printing and manufacturing of high quality paper
products, securities investment, provision of financing
services and property investment.

No share was held by the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2014 (the unaudited net profit attributable to
the owners of New Island Development Holdings Limited for
the six months ended 30 September 2013: approximately
HK$12,518,000).

Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited is principally
engaged in the shopping mall operating business in the
PRC.

No share was held by the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2014 (the unaudited net loss attributable to the
owners of Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited
for the six months ended 30 June 2013: approximately
RMB184,505,000).
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23.

RESRRAAEBEIRZEH
EE (#|)

REBRAERDF

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(%)

BREBRTRHDBRARNETER L& K
NREENEMETRE BEERE RIT
K A 15 AR R A

BERITROHDBRARBEE_Z—HF
+-—A=+—HB1NEA Z%ﬁm&:
15 R EZ AT 4 A AR EZ0,459,000
T AEBRARAR-_TE—=F+—
A=+—HAWEFHEMRD -

N R Hxﬁﬁﬁ”&?}xﬁé%ﬂfﬂ&
ERERAHNM BHRE RHME
R RMERE

REEBRARGTR-_T—HNFE+_A
=t+—BWESEEMERG (GTNEEE
BERAGHE-ZTE—=FNLA=+H
IEARBEAZHEE ABRREEZLAT
#912,518,000/8 7T ) °
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BYBEEEER-

SR Bt =
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—t—BUYESEEABKG (AMEE
ERBRAGEHE —=FxXH=+
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RERREBAANEEYERZESH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The followings are the analysis of realised (loss)/gain of each held- UWTARBE-_ZE—NFAR-_F—=F+=-A
to-trading investments for the years ended 31 December 2014 ST+ RALEFESERBIEEEREZEER
and 2013: (B18) Wi
2014 —ZE—UE
Selling Cost of Realised
Stock code price  investment (loss)/gain
2B (FR)
Name of equity securities ENE g BRI EE BRERK Va'¢:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. RERITRHERAF 3968 60,471 61,087 (616)
New Island Development Holdings Limited TNERERERAF 377 23,077 33,718 (10,641)
Tencent Holdings Limited BRERERDA 700 23,850 24,603 (753)
Unity Investments Holdings Limited B REERERRA 913 66,164 33,146 33,018
Cost of
Selling price investment Realised loss
Name of debt securities BEEEHER EE BRERK B2 B EE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER FEx

Renhe Commercial Holdings Company AFEEZERER AR

Limited 10,120 10,150 (30)
EmREEeARAT 01455 | D/
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RERREBAAEBEYERZER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (8)
(CONTINUED)
Cost of
Selling price investment Realised loss
Nature of commodities EmtE EE RERAE E#RER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FET
NSI/Silver NSl (= 8 (10) 1 (1)
NSL/Crude QOil NSL/ R H (52) 1 (53)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, dividend income of REEZZT—OF+_A=+—HLEFE #
approximately HK$26,000 was received from Tencent Holdings B BT P A% B PR 2 &) U ER % B Uk A 4926,00078
Limited. JC°
2013 —_F—=
Cost of Realised
Stock code  Selling price investment loss
Name of equity securities RAZES B R R EE BREKAEA CEEERE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. BRRTRNDARRE 3968 30,085 31,488 (1,408)
Forefront Group Limited BASEBEARAR 855 121 220 (99)
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited REPELZRBRAA 279 396 400 )
Heritage International Holdings Limited EEERERAR 412 14 31 {17
Huili Resources (Group) Limited ENER(EB)ARAR 1303 40,698 41,302 (604)
Mascotte Holdings Limited BHEEEARDA 136 479 555 (76)
New Island Development Holdings Limited ~ #7i/ll 2 B2 i B 1R 2 7] 377 22,308 47,514 (25,206)
Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited EHFEEERER AR 901 317 530 (213)
Tencent Holdings Limited BEAZERERAA 700 5,572 6,061 (489)
China High Speed Transmission HEERESRBEEE

Equipment Group Co., Ltd. BRAF 658 2,259 2,503 (244)
Willie International Holdings Limited BAIBIBR IR B R A A 273 27 48 (1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RERREBAANEEYERZESH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (8)
(CONTINUED)
2013 (continued) —T—=F(H)
Cost of
Selling price investment Realised loss
Name of debt securities ARESLRE BB HE KA BEEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT FTHT
Renhe Commercial Holdings AMEEERER AT
Company Limited 9,393 11,716 (2,323)
Cost of
Selling price investment Realised loss
Nature of commodities EmitE B BE KA BEEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FTHT
NSI/Silver NSYE=F::! (148) (183) (331)
During the year ended 31 December 2013, dividend income of REE-_T—=F+=-A=+—HBIEFE"
approximately HK$697,000 was received from China Merchants HBREBRITRMDAER A AWK E KA L
Bank Co., Ltd.. 697,0007% JT °

BiaEegRAT 01458 |59
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. ANRE -RER HMEKRIE

RECEIVABLES

The Group RE
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
Prepayments B HIE 22,538 4,876
Other receivables (Note) Hpth FEURIE (B 22) 42,386 60,917
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke EMES 4,448 2,815
69,372 68,608

Note: Kia -

Included in other receivables was Loan Receivable of approximately
HK$18,208,000, which was reclassified to AFS financial assets during
the year ended 31 December 2014 (please refer to Note 21 (vii) for
details). Other receivables mainly include interest receivables from
AFS financial assets and financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$1,586,000 and other receivable from an investee of approximately
HK$40,800,000 (please refer to Note 21(iii) for details).

REBEE-Z-—MNE+_A=+—"BLEE =
FE W SR IE B 4 FE W B 5K 4918,208,000%8 7T B
BB EAHHECHEE (FB5H28WE
21(vii)) B ERFIEEEREAREESHEE
ZERFERREZRIZANEBEIERZS/E
EE#91,586,00078 7T LA I #4548 & A & 2 H 4t FE Y 3x
TH #140,800,0007% 7t (#1558 2 B M 5221ii) ) °

The Company P NYNE]
2014 2013
—E-mF s e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FH&T
Prepayments BT HIR 22,538 4,876
Other receivable (Note) H A e WOk IR (Hat) 1,586 20,117
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke MEMES 4,449 2,815
28,573 27,808

Note: Hiat

Included in other receivables was Loan Receivable of approximately
HK$18,208,000, which was reclassified to AFS financial assets during
the year ended 31 December 2014 (please refer to Note 21 (vii) for
details). Other receivables mainly included interest receivables from
AFS financial assets and financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$1,586,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ=_—Z

25. WARRANTS

On 3 September 2013, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of warrants (“Outstanding Warrants”)
has been adjusted. The 17,948,491 Outstanding Warrants issued
on 8 April 2011 with an exercise price of HK$4.5 immediately
before the rights issue has been adjusted to 26,922,737 with
an exercise price of HK$3.87. Details of the adjustment of
Outstanding Warrants have been disclosed in the announcement
dated 3 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 210,526 outstanding
convertible note warrants (“Outstanding CN Warrants”) issued on
22 April 2010 were expired and did not subject to the adjustment.
The amount of approximately HK$409,000 was reclassified from
warrant reserve to accumulated losses. At 31 December 2013,
the Company had Outstanding CN Warrants of approximately
26,923,000 and their exercise in full would result in the issue of
approximately 26,923,000 shares.

On 21 February 2014, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Warrants has been
adjusted. The 26,922,737 Outstanding Warrants issued on 8 April
2011 with an exercise price of HK$3.87 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 107,690,948 with an exercise
price of HK$1.79. Details of the adjustment of Outstanding
Warrants have been disclosed in the announcement dated 20
February 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 107,690,948
Outstanding Warrants issued on 8 April 2011 were expired. The
fair value of approximately HK$89,000 was reclassified from
warrant reserve to accumulated losses. At 31 December 2014, the
Company had no Outstanding Warrants.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

25.

BARERANR
R R
{ﬁ\ﬂ-‘ = :f_:ijlﬁza%& u/uﬂy\ﬁéb&

(IRTTERBEE]) 2B RITEEEER
BN ——F WA /)\HETT217,948,491
MDARITERIIEE (BERERAZITEERL.5
77T ) B B 526,022,737 (17 1# B3.87%8
TL) o RTTERREZCHABRFENRAH A
E—=FNAZAZRAEREE-

RBEZZE—=F+=-A=+—HBLFE"
\ZE—FTFWA =+ = H%E172210,526(3
RITEAIMRERRRES ([RITEATHBRR
ERRREE ] ELIY wEAELAEK-
#9409,0008 T2 R B RRIEZFEEEN 5
BERAEBBE - RZTE—=F+=ZA=1+—
H ARARIZARTEABRBREERREZED

%

/526,923,00017 ' ANEREITE B EHRETLH
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A% —ME=-F - +—H%MK - RITE
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—MOE+=-A=+—B  ARALERITER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of shares Amount
BB EE nE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mf "= ZCZB-OfF C"ZT-=%
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T TER THIT
The Group and the Company FEEREAAT
Authorised: AT
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—B GREA
HK$0.01/HK$0.05 each 0.01787T,/0.058 70 2 Li@A% 20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
At 31 December, ordinary shares of B+=—A=+—R0 SREEA
HK$0.01 each 0018 LMk 20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—B SREE
HK$0.01/HK$0.05 each 0.0187T/0.05% T2 LRk 331,674 184,266 3,317 1,843
Rights issue (Note () and Note (iv)) AR (W OR AT )) 995,022 110,558 9,950 1,106
Placing (Note (i) and Note (v) BE (HmRATEY) 132,660 36,850 1,326 368
Placing (Note (i) BE (#3)) 132,680 - 1,327 -
At 31 December ®R+-—A=+—H 1,592,036 331,674 15,920 3,317
Notes: Kiaz -

On 21 February 2014, the Company completed the rights issue
on the basis of three rights shares for every share held on the
record date. 995,022,471 shares were issued at a subscription
price of HK$0.1 per rights share. A share premium of
approximately HK$82,022,000 had credited to share premium
account. The net proceeds of approximately HK$91,972,000
are intended to be used for investments in listed and unlisted
securities and/or as general working capital of the Group and
for future investments pursuant to the investment objectives
of the Company. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 January 2014,
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZFT—NWFE+-_A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continuead)

On 15 August 2014, the Company placed 132,660,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.6 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$76,193,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$77,518,000 are intended to be used for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. Details
of the placing were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 12 August 2014, 13 August 2014 and 15 August 2014.

On 23 September 2014, the Company placed 132,679,325
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.7 per placing share.
A share premium of approximately HK$88,255,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$89,582,000 are intended to be used for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. Details
of the placing were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated on 8 September 2014 and 23 September 2014.

On 3 September 2013, the Company completed the rights
issue on the basis of one rights share for every two shares
held on the record date. 110,558,052 shares were issued at a
subscription price of HK$0.17 per rights share. A share premium
of approximately HK$16,099,000 had credited to share
premium. The net proceeds of approximately HK$17,205,000
are intended to be used for investments in listed and unlisted
securities and/or as general working capital of the Group and
for future investments pursuant to the investment objectives
of the Company. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated on 9 July 2013.

On 28 June 2013, the Company placed 36,850,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.285 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$9,568,000 had credited
to share premium. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$9,936,000 are intended to be used for general working
capital of the Group and for future investments pursuant to the
investment objectives of the Company. Details of the placing
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated on 20
June 2013.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

26. BRA (#E)

Hiet: (&)

R-ZZ—MENA+HRB AAFEE
132,660,000/ FL & & 1n BEL & & B TR
fic & A% 170.6%8 7T ° B% 17 i 18 4976,193,000
BILETARMD B ER -FIERIBFELN
77,518,000 T IRIE AR ARl 2w &E B 1%
FRIERREE - B & 2 FFBHN AR R B H
AZE-NMENA+=ZB -ZE—WMENA
+=ZBR=_E-—MNENA+REBZRAER-

RZE—WNEAAZ+=B AARRE
132,679,325 R E R H EEEERETR
2 & A% 190.778 Tt » AR 17 % (B 4988,255,000
BB T ARMD R ER TS RIBFREL
89,582,000 TR IBIE AN Al 2K & B 12
FRIERRIEE - L& 2 FHBEHN AR R B H
A_E-—NEAANBR-_ZT—MNFENA
—t+=HZRER-

R-ZE—=FAA=0 AREZTHRIZN
8% B EIFTHE T AR AR (5 3 — IR AR AR D 2
FOEHITHAY © 110,558,052/ 1% 1) B 123288
BT D07 T EIT - BRDEELD
16,099,000/ 7T B 5t A B 17 3% (& © B 15 58
SREEA17,205,00078 TR AR E E R IE
EHRBEN SAEAEEZ —REBEED
MREADNRZIE BIZRERKIEE o1
Bz H#EEN AR EHA-S—=5+H4
HABEZRER.

R-ZBE—=%F~A=-+N B XA7E
36,850,000 FL £ (5 L E B ABRES
% 150.2857% JT » J% 17 )i & 499,568,000/% 7T
BEFT AR R (E o TS 2R F 58 499,936,000
BILEAERAER Y —REEE S RIRER
RAIZIREBZAERKREE -BEZFB
HENAARARA-—ZT—=FA-1+A2

AER.

B BAE BAT 2 RS R B 5 T BB 2 TR
ARG EERSMS-
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27. RESERVES 27. #1E
The Company b /NI
AFS
Share financial
Share option Warrants  asset equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
A E
AREER SREE
ROGE BRERE i EnfE e ] @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERL TEx TER TER
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=£-F-H 301,426 4,558 498 (1,125) 98615 206,742
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (116,940) (116,940)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRE 2 U
net of income tax EHRAEH - - - 1,125 - 1125
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2AENE/ (BR)4E
for the year - - - 1,125 (116,940) (115,815)
Placing [ 10,134 - - - - 10,134
Placing expenses RERX (566) - - - - (566)
Rights issue IR 17,689 - - - - 17,689
Rights issue expenses HIRF (1590) - - - - (1,590)
Release upon expiry of warrants RRRAEE E W R - - (409) - 409 -
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=%+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2014 —E-mE-5-A 327,093 4,558 89 - pi5146) 11659
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (109,098) (109,098)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRE 2 EU
net of income tax EHRAEH - - - 472 - 472
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ENE/ (BR)4E
for the year - - - 472 (109,098) (108,626)
Recognition of equity settled share-based R LR ELE MR H A
payments B 258 - 24,671 - - - 24,671
Placing [ 169,818 - - - - 169,818
Placing expenses RERY (5,371) - - - - (5,371)
Rights issue Ak 89,552 - - - - 89,562
Rights issue expenses HRFES (7,530) - - - - (7,530)
Release upon expiry of warrants PR IR s B B - - (89) - 89 -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-M§+=-A=+-H 573,562 29,229 - 472 (324,155) 279,108
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28. SHORT-TERM LOAN 28. HHEM
The Group and the Company AEBRAQT
2014
—E-mF
HK$’000
FHET
Loans from third party (Note (i) E=HER(KE)
— Principal NG 55,000
— Interest —FI 8 747
55,747
Unsecured 4K 1 55,747
Carrying amount repayable (Note (i): JEEERRESE (Mi2m)
Within one year —F R 55,747
Notes: Kiat
)  The Company entered into loan agreements with a financial 0} ApafE—HeREES IR =_E—mFN
institution amounted to HK$40,000,000 and HK$15,000,000 on AZ+HRBER=ZE—ME+=-A=+H:IZ
25 September 2014 and 30 December 2014 respectively. The 40,000,000/% 7T & 150,000,000/ 7T 2 B 7 1%
maturity period of the loans does not exceed 3 calendar months EoREEXRAEXRMEB BRI =MEEA
from the date of loan agreement. The interest rate on the loans NE B -BERMNEAES LGELRITAR
is the Hong Kong Dollar prime rate as quoted by the Hongkong NAITNEHR B THREBRNE ([HEEF
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from time to time ) EREMHE -
(“Prime Rate”) plus two per cent per annum.
(i) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates (i) FEAREDBREERGRAERTEERAEH
set out in the loan agreements. =
29. PROMISSORY NOTES 20, & HEE

On 21 November 2012 and 11 April 2013, the Group issued seven
and four promissory notes respectively of HK$10,000,000 each to
eleven independent third parties. Each promissory note is issued at
5% interest rate per annum with 7 years maturity from the date of
issue. The net proceeds are intended to be used for investment in
listed securities and/or general capital of the Group.

RZE——F+—A=Z+—HEZZ—=FN0
AZ+—8 A&EHRETEH REGEHD
10,000,000 L2 & A BB T+ —BBILE=
7o G A H EIRIRF R EE5% 1T - REEATH
s mtE S - B RERERAREE
EMEER/SKAEAERZ —HED-

B BEESARAT 2014558 |65
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29.

30.

PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED) 29. AN ERE (&)
The carrying amount and fair value of promissory notes at the end EAEBREFRPRZEDSERAAER:
of the reporting period:
The Group and the Company TEERARQF
Carrying amount Fair value
FEHSH ARERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B2-mf C"T-=F CZB-@F C"T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT
Promissory notes AHERE 108,367 108,085 77,806 71,715
The fair value of the promissory notes is calculated based on the EAZEBRZARBEDBEIZN12.5%IE 2
present value of contractually determined stream of future cash RARREROEREZBBEFE -
flow discounted at approximately 12.5%.
DEFERRED TAXATION 30. B

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as the Group
and the Company had no material temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements (2013: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$336,540,000 (2013: approximately
HK$285,346,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$332,040,000 (2013: approximately
HK$268,686,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams.
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NET ASSETS VALUE PER SHARE

As at 31 December 2014, the net assets value per share is
HK$0.19 (2013: HK$0.36).

The calculation of net assets value per share is based on the net
assets of approximately HK$295,992,000 (2013: approximately
HK$120,343,000) and 1,592,036,000 (2013: 331,674,000)
ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2014.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisition of Sea Hero and Prima Power

On 5 September 2013, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Sea Hero Investments Limited (“Sea Hero”) and
Prima Power Limited (“Prima Power”), collectively referred as “Sea
Hero Group”, at a total consideration of HK$24,500,000 in cash.
The Sea Hero Group has not carried out any significant business
transaction since the acquisition except holding a yacht. The
acquisition did not constitute an acquisition of business which the
Group principally purchased fixed asset through the acquisition.
Therefore, the acquisition was not disclosed as business
combination in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 3
Business Combination. The acquisition was accounted for as asset
acquisition.

Summary of the effects of the acquisition are as follows:

31.

32.

BREEFE

R-—Z-WE+=A=+—A SREEFE
RONGET (ZF—=%:0.36/&7T) °

EREEFENEN -_E—NE+-A=+—
B2 B EFE#295,992,0008 T (T —=
£ : #9120,343,0007% 7T ) & 1,592,036,000%

— T — =4 :331,674,0008%) B %7 E B
ETE -

W B FfS 8 2 =)
Y f& Sea Hero & Prima Power

R-ZT—=FhAREH AEBUYESea Hero
Investments Limited ([ Sea Hero | ) % Prima
Power Limited ([ Prima Power |) (£ &
[SeaHero% @ |) 2 HERTHR A BREA
I ©24,500,000/% 7T ° B Y & LA 2K - Sea Hero
SEWEETENEAEBRS  HEFE—HE
FRERIN - AR A EEETZFZRREFTEREE
BEZE WUBSETTEN —BEBK
B-AU WEETBEUERBRE ST EHREE
R3S [EBE0t] < HERBREBE O -
W EIEAEERE AR

WEZEfmmmT:

Acquiree’s
carrying amount Total
HWBLTZ
RESHE FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHExT
Net assets acquired: i - EEFE:
Yacht BERE 24,500 24,500
Total consideration satisfied by: UTHAX LG 2BRE:
Cash consideration HeRE 24,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: BENELE2ESREFE:
Cash consideration ReRE 24,500

=
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32.

33.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Sea Hero and Prima Power
(Continued)

Note:

Sea Hero Group did not generate any turnover and incurred a loss of
approximately HK$817,000 for the period from 5 September 2013 (the
date of acquisition) to 31 December 2013.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2013, the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 would not be affected,
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 would have been
approximately HK$817,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purpose only and is not necessarily an indication of turnover and results
of the Sea Hero Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 August 2014, the Group has disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Sea Hero Group. On that date control of the yacht
passed to the acquirer. Details of the assets disposed of, and the
calculation of the loss on disposal, are disclosed belows:

Consideration received

32.

33.

WiEHE AR (&)

U5 i% Sea Hero X2 Prima Power (&)

Bt

RZTE—=FhLARB (WERH) ZE=_F—=
+= A =+1+—B 5 - Sea Heros= [ 3 8 7= 4 (£ {7
BT WEEEELI817,0008 7T

HEEEENR T —=F—A—HB=K AEAEE
HE-_Z—Z-F+_A=-+-—BLEEZE%EE
BAZEE mMEE—_T—=F+-_A=+—HL
FEE 2B EA A817,0005 7T - 5 £ B EHE 3
HRAZ AURBRIREBEHEER_E—=F—AH
—H5EK * Sea HerofR BB EERS 2 B R
BZABRR IV EHE R AR R SEETEA -

HEMBRARZER

R-Z—mWFENA-+/\H AEE L ESea
Hero% B 2 230 B B 1TILAS o B4R 2 12 FIl #E I
RZAEBEE S -THEEEZFBRLE

BEZHETERBOT
2R E

2014

—g-mE

HK$’000

TR

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents NEReRBSEEEE WM ZARE 20,000
Analysis of assets over which control was lost EREGIRZEEDSN

2014
—ZE-F
HK$’000
FEx

Non-current asset kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B KEE 22,050
Net assets disposed of FrbEZEEFE 22,050
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LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33 HEMBRAR &R (&)
(CONTINUED)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZER
2014
—E-mEF
HK$’000
FExT
Consideration received B E 20,000
Net assets disposed of FribE vz BEFE (22,050)
Loss on disposal HEEsE (2,050)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEERAFEEHE
2014
—E-—MfF
HK$’000
FTET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents LIRe MBS EEEE W RE 20,000
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, KEHEAE
The Group and the Company EEEREAT
As lessee 1ERARFEA
As at the end of each reporting period, the total future minimum REESWMBR BRETARELCEHERNEE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due Nz ARREFEHRERBRLBEDT
as follows:
2014 2013
—2-mEF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Within one year —FR 6,217 10,046
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EZFLF (BEEEMF) 13,474 8,010
19,691 18,056
The Group leases office properties under operating lease AEERBEEHELHEERAZTYWE M
arrangement and the lease payments are fixed and pre- HMEFEAETHAELET -
determined.
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35. ERBEEALRS
TRANSACTIONS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RERE ISR AL D T HE R E SN B R
statements, for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the —EMERZT—=FF+-A=+—HIF
Group had entered into transactions with related parties, which, in B ASEREEALTETRS EERAEE
the opinion of the directors, were carried out on normal commercial MRS TIRASR 2 B EBRIEPIZ —RE
terms and in the ordinary course of the Group’s business. FIGRETT
2014 2013
—Z-NF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT F&TT

Consultancy expenses paid to arelated party BEffEEA T ZERER

(Note () (HtaEn) 400 400
Interest income received from a related party B EEA LT 2 A BUA

(Note (i) (Bt atam) 371 345
Commission expenses paid to BENEEATZHEER

a related party (Note (i) (& i) ) 1,996 800
License fee paid to a related party WERPAETREEALT

for use of office (Note (i) X2 ASRFE (W) 1,582 581

Loan Receivable from a related party (Note (i) FKEBEALZEIKER

(Bfat) - 18,208
Interest receivable from a related party Uk B AT 2 R B (AaEa)
(Note (i) 371 1,287
Notes: Bt
0] Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick is the director of the Company and () RFIBEERBTRBIRIERERFR A A
Beijing Capital Partners Limited (“Beijing Capital”). Beijing Capital (TERER ) 2EF - EREXB T ——
has switched from providing investment management services FRAZTEHEARHRRATERBEAR
to consultancy services since 27 May 2011. R R RS
(i)~ Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the iy EBEELEEBARQFZESE KPremium
shareholder of Premium Castle. Castlez i& 5 °
(i)~ Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the (i) EEEEEARNBZESRIERELFFR
shareholder of Beijing Securities Limited’s holding company. RAZER AR Z IR -

| 70 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2014



35.

36.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_—ZT—NF+_A=+—HILtFE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 3. EAHEALTRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Key management compensation FEEEE FHM
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits %4 & H b 18 2112 8 48 7 5,154 4001
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme RRBET B2 EEHR 65 44
5,219 4,045
The emoluments of directors and other members of key BEERTEEEEBAEMEKEZMETIREMNE
management are determined by the remuneration committee BeREARNKRBERMSBAEE-

having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. AR AERSAR2ZRS
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution duly passed at an extraordinary BERZEZLFNA T+ EABITZRER
general meeting of shareholders dated 27 August 2007, the FlAE FEFRBR s E@EAER BERR
existing share option scheme was terminated, and a new share REHEIE T4 IE - T AR R 21 7 B AR FE
option scheme was adopted accordingly. At the date of termination HM-REABRESSIQ LB HEER
of the existing share option scheme, there were no options T2 BB AE -

remained outstanding.
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36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

With reference to the terms and conditions of the new share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Group
on 27 August 2007, the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
in principle, is to enable the Group to motivate participants for
their significant contributions to the growth of the Group and to
retain and maintain on-going business relationship with such
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long term growth of the Group. It is important for the Group to
provide for them, where appropriate, with an additional incentive by
offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and to reward them for their contributions to the Group’s
long term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

0] The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed ten
percent (10%) of the aggregate of the shares in issue as
at the adoption date unless refreshed by the shareholders.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other scheme should not exceed thirty percent (30%) of
the shares in issue from time to time.

(ii) The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed one percent (1%) of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being.

(i)  The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(iv)  An option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 28 days from the date of offer of the option. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant of the
option.

(v} The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years commencing on 27 August 2007.

On 3 September 2013, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 174,720 and 11,670,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$19 and HK$1.89 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 209,664 and 14,004,000 with an
exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 respectively. Details of
the adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed
in the announcement dated 3 September 2013.

On 20 February 2014, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 209,664 and 14,004,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 587,059 and 39,211,200 with an
exercise price of HK$5.65 and HK$0.56 respectively. Details of the
adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed in
the announcement dated 20 February 2014.

On 11 July 2014, the Company granted 132,640,000 share
options to eligible person to subscribe for up to 132,640,000
ordinary shares at an exercise price of HK$0.40 within the
exercisable period, under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 August 2007.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 172,438,259 (2013: 14,213,664),
representing 10.8% (2013: 4.3%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

36. AR AERTR2RS (H)

(v RERZEEFURBREZOA DL
T NBARRZBEREARA B
X EBRUE - BIZEM A AR S1.008 7T
ERAREBERELRE-

v) BEREIZERHAE _ZTTLFEN
A tEtBEFTF-

HER—_TE—=F LA =B TR R THEHER
%2%& BERAGEEEFEAER - RZTEZTLEF
+—A=tN\BE=Z—FmA+N\BH
R H 2174,7203 &11,670,00019 & 17 5 B8
A (ZE AT 2 T E RB1958 T &1.8978
JL) B % A209,66415 K 14,004,000 (171#
{815.838 70 M 1.58/ 870 ) - AITFIEMAERAE

CHEEREMA-E-—=EAA=AZAL
B -
BB =B —mE = A=+ BRHK - KITER

RiEZHB RITEBCHEFAE - R LF
+—A-tN\BER-ZE—FmA+ABHH
% 2 209,66410 F14,004,00015 7 77 fif BE A%
P (BEERA 21T (B A15.83/8 T &k 1.587%8
7L ) B #E A587,05917 39,211,200 (17{E
85.65% 7T &0.56/8 7T ) ° AR 17 1% B8 AR 4 3 &
CHEBEERASMAE-TS—NE-_BF=+HZA

LRE-

RZZE—NELA+—B XATEAEERA
t%‘ﬂj132640000f\ﬁﬁﬂx$% VAR AT 17 {5 EA
AR A A EE+FENA=Z+TLEAK
W2 BB R Jriw&«ﬂ%{?éo.ztoi%ﬁsﬂﬁﬁ%%
132,640,0008% & i % -

—MHE+=A=+—8 " REBERE
%H%Hj'l“@ﬁﬁKﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁgiﬁ&zwﬁ%H
7%172 438,259k (=& — =4 : 14,213,664

&) AEERRA T”*Elaéffﬁﬂﬁm%os%(f?
— = :14.3%)
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

36. AR AEERTR2XRS (F)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2011 was HK$0.03 each. Options were priced using
a binomial option pricing model.

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price HK$0.081
Exercise price HK$0.890
Expected volatility 88.71%
Option life 6.4 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.210%
Exercise multiple 1.2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies’ share price over the previous 331
weeks.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2014 was HK$0.19 each. Options were priced using

a binomial option pricing model.

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price HK$0.4
Exercise price HK$0.4
Expected volatility 90.43%
Option life 3.1 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.88%
Exercise multiple 2.2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies’ share price over the previous 162
weeks.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LUROAERNR2XS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

TEHBEEEREAFHALABRERRE
—E-mE+-ASt+—BLFEZ B

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees during the year ended 31

December 2014:
Number of share options
BREHAE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Reclassified ~ Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1January 31 December
2014 year year year year the year 2014 2014 2014 Date of grant Exercisable period
R=F-mF R-2-DE R-2-DE R-2-DF
-A-H tZA=t-B -B-B t=A=+-8
MR FRRI FRTE FRER FREFAR FRa% MR 2i1RE 2TEE RiLAH s
(HKS) (HKS) (Note)
(#B7) (#7) (Hit)
Directors
j £
Mr. Wong Danny F. 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 16.83 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
TR E ZETHET-AZTAR ZEEHET-ACTNEZE
S AV I =
139,200 250,560 389,760 158 0.56 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
ZE—FNATNE ZE-—¥NAtN\BE
it S AV I =
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 15.83 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
R¥BEE ZEZLH+-AZT/\B ZETHET-A-T\BE
ZE+EN\AZTRE
139,200 250,560 389,760 158 0.56 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——%MmATNR “F—ENATN\EE
S AV P =
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 16.83 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
REERE S ey I I i I AV:ES
it S AV e =
139,200 250,560 389,760 158 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——4MmATNR ZZ-—-fNAtN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
Ms. Yang Xiaofeng 26,208 - - - - 47175 73,383 16.83 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BRExT “ERLEH-AZT/\A +F+-A=T/\BE
S AV P =
139,200 250,560 389,760 158 0.56 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
ZE—FNATNE ZE-—-¥EAtN\BE
it S AV e =}
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 26,208 - - - - 47175 73,383 15.83 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHAKE ZEELE+-AZT/\B ZETHEFT-A-T\BE
ZE+EN\AZTRE
139,200 250,560 389,760 158 0.56 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017

ZF-—BAHE

—F-—5NA+N\BE
ZE-ENAZTRE

mEEeaRAT 01458 | /5
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

N

36. URODBERGR RS (&)

Exercise Exercise
price at price at
1January 31 December
2014 2014

W-F-DmF W-F-DF R-F-DF

Number of share options
BREHA

Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Reclassified ~ Adjustment at
1 January during during during during during 31 December
2014 year year year year the year 2014

R=2-BF
-A-7 +2A=+-A
MR ERRIL ERTE FRER EREFIR ERAE MR

Date of grant

BHAM

Exercisable period

s
(Note)
(Hi)

Mr. Liu Jin
Bgsrs

Employees

&8

Resigned directors (Note )
BREES (W)

Other eligible participants
EfhaERLEE

Total
At

Weighted average
exercise price

METEAER

26,208 - - - - 47,174 73,382
139,200 250,560 389,760
992,448 - - - - 1786406 2778854

3,992,400 - - - - 7186320 11178720
- 132640000 - - - - 132,640,000

52416 - - - - 94,349 146,765

278,400 - - - - 501,120 779520
8,898,000 - - - - 16016400 24914400
14,213,664 132,640,000 - - - 25584595 172438259
HK$1.79 - - - - - HKS0.45
179587 045% 7
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—A-B t=A=t-R
2fEm 2fEM
(HKS) (HKS)
(Er) (Br)
1583 586
158 086
158 056

- 040

1583 566
158 056
158 056

28Nov 2007
“ERLEt-ACTAR

18 Apr 2011

“E-—F@ATNR

18 Apr 2011

—2-—%¥EAt/A

11Jul2014
“2-mELA-A

28 Nov 2007
“ERLEH-ATTAR

18 Apr 2011
ZB-—FNATNH

18 Apr 2011
ZE-—FNATNE

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
ZEREFT-AZH\BE
E-+EN\A=+AA

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2—ENATNEE
ZE-+EN\AZTRE

18 Apr 2011 10 26 Aug 2017
E—#R@ATNRE
“EHENAZEAR

11Jul2014 10 26 Aug 2017
“B-mELAT-RE
“I-LENATHAE

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
“ETLEL-ANRE
“R—tEN\AZTRR

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“2-—5WA+\RE
“RtFN\AZTAE

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2——HOATN\RE
“RtFN\AZTRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—WNF+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LUROAERNR2XS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

TREBEZREEMFARABRENEE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by directors and employees during the year ended 31 —E—=F+-A=+—BHIEFEZEF:
December 2013:
Number of share options
By
Qutstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Reclassiied  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1 January 31 December
2013 year year year year the year 2013 2013 2013 Dateof grant Exercisable period
W_Z2-=%F RZE-=F RZT-=F R-F-=F
-A-H T2A= —-A—B tZA=t-8
HATTR FRRIH ERTTR ERRR FREHIR FRAE HATTER 2T E 2B REAH f1fes
(HKS) (HKS) (Note)
(#7) (#7) (Hit)
Directors
3
Mr. Wong Danny F. 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
AEELEE ZEELET-AZHNA ZZEtE+-F-t/\RE
ZE+ENAZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—£WA+/\R ZZ-—§¥mAtN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug2 017
RTERE ZEELET-AZHNA ZZEtE+-R-t/\RE
ZE+EN\AZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2 017
—2-—%WA+/\R ZZ-—-§¥mAtN\BE
ZE+EN\AZTRE
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
REEEE ZEELET-AZHNA ZEEtE+-R-t/\RE
ZE+ENAZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%WA+/\R ZZ-—§¥mAtN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
Ms. Yang Xiaofeng 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BREETLT ZEELET-AZHNA ZZEtE+-R-t/\RE
ZE+ENAZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%WA+/\R ZZ-—§¥mAtN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHRLE ZEELET-AZHNA ZZEtE+-R-t/\RE
ZE+ENAZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—£WA+/\R ZZ-—§¥mAtN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
Mr. Liu Jin 21,840 - - - - 4,368 26,208 19 1583 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
Ell- vt ZEELET-AZHNA ZZEtE+-R-t/\RE
ZEHENAZTRE
116,000 23,200 139,200 1.89 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%WA+/\R ZZ-—-§¥mA+tN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
AR AR BRAF 0146H | [/
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_-_ZFT—WNF+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

36.

URORERNR 2R S (H)

Number of share options
EREHE
QOutstanding QOutstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Reclassified  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1 January 31 December
2013 year year year year the year 2013 2013 2013 Dateof grant Exercisable period
RZZ-ZF RZZ-ZF RZB-Zf RZT-=%
-A-A TZA=t-H —A—-R t=A=t-A
HATE FRRL FRTE FREM FRENAR FRHE HARTTHE iy d | 2R HEHBS fifes
(HKS) (HKS) (Notg)
(B7) (BT) (i)
Mr. Wong Sin Lai (Note fj) 116,000 - - - (116,000) - - 189 - 18Aproott 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
TESRAE (Witn) ZF-—FNA+NR ZE-—-F¥NA+N\BE
it et AV I
943,040 - - - (116,000) 165,408 992,448
Employees 38,327,000 - - - - 665,400 3,992,400 0.189 189 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
B8 ZE-—§mAtNR ZE-—¥NAtN\BE
e AV I N
Resigned directors (Note (ij) 43,680 - - - - 8,736 52,416 19 1683 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BRHEES () ZFEEET-A-tN\R ZERtE+-A-TNAE
ZE-tENAZTRE
116,000 - - - - 23,200 139,200 189 168 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—Z——EEATNA “E—ENATN\EE
ZE-ENAZTRE
- - - - 116,000 23,200 139,200 189
Other eligible participants 7,415,000 - - - - 1,483,000 8,898,000 189 158 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
EfhaER2EE —E-—fmAtNR —E-—-¥NAtN\RE
“2—tF\AZTRA
Total 11,844,720 - - - - 2,368,944 14,213,664
At
Weighted average HKS2.14 - - - - - HK$1.79
exercise price
MEFETEE 2145 17957

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had the weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.65 years (2013: 3.65 years).

Notes:

(i)

In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement,
(i) @ maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of
grant; (i) a maximum of another 30% options, plus any options
being unexercised in (i), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of
total options granted, are exercisable from 28 November 2008,
and (jii) the remaining 40% options, plus any options being
unexercised in (i) and (i), are exercisable from 28 November
2009 to 26 August 2017.

On 4 October 2013, Mr. Wong Sin Lai (formerly named as \Wong
Tam Yee) resigned as independent non-executive directors
of the Company. The share options held by Mr. Wong Sin Lai
Nang was then reclassified as share options held by resigned
directors.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—WNF+-_A=+—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company did not
have any material capital commitments (2013: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@ On 28 March 2014, an extraordinary general meeting
was held to pass an ordinary resolution in relation to the
proposed refreshment of general mandate of the Company
to issue and allot shares. The Board is of the view that
the refreshment of general mandate would maintain the
flexibility of the Company for any future allotment and issue
of its shares by the Board necessary for the Group’s future
business development. GF Capital (Hong Kong) Limited was
appointed as the independent financial adviser to advise
the independent board committee and the independent
shareholders in respect of the grant of the new general
mandate. Details of the refreshment was disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 30 January 2015.

(b)  Pursuant to the circular of the Company dated 17 March
2015, an extraordinary general meeting will be held on 8
April 2015 to approve the proposed amendment to the
existing Article 111 of the articles of association of the
Company in relation to the Company’s borrowing powers.
The Board proposed to remove the restriction on the
Company’s borrowing limited to 50% of its net asset value.
The Board is of the view that proposed amendment to the
borrowing powers is in the interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole because it can: (1) provide
flexibility to the Company’s management to capture any
good opportunity in timely manner; (2) allow the Company
to raise funds to strengthen its cashflow base and improve
its financial position for the Company’s future investments,
development and expansion; and (3) ensure the Company
be one of those investments companies listed on the a
Main Board of the Stock Exchange under Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules, which can benefit and take advance on the
abovementioned strong economic growth and the needs of
the potential professional investors of the PRC.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 25 February 2014, the Loan Receivable of approximately
HK$18,208,000 was reclassified from other receivable to AFS
financial assets in relation to the Subscription Agreement entered
on 24 December 2013. Detail please refer to note 21.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015.
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Five Years Financial Summary

hAFIEME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEBBEARTFE 2R EERAGBEHREZD
years are as follows: N

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—EB-MFE —ZT—= —E——F —T——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET T T FHET FHT
Results E4
Revenue W %5 56,480 (42,603) 63,591 (152,825) 68,599
(Loss)/profit before income tax & Fr 15 & Al
(&) (112,941) (177,881) 30,134 (185,468) 40,760
Income tax expense RS - - - - -
(Loss)/profit attributable to PAN/NCIEZZS DN
owners of the Company fEfh (E518)
picl] (112,941) (177,881) 30,134 (185,468) 40,760
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-ME —ZT—= —FT-——F —ET——F =Z—T-IZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FHT AT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEMBE 469,018 231,790 279,763 177,376 302,959
Total liabilities BERE (173,026) (111,447) (69,885) (902) (1,762)
Shareholders’ fund RRE S 205,992 120,343 209,878 176,474 301,197
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